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CHAIR AND CEO REPORT
The Year in Review
2018/2019 has been a year of improvement at Bairnsdale Regional Health Service. We would like to
acknowledge and thank the staff for the hard work and their ongoing efforts to ensuring Bairnsdale
Regional Health Service is a place of continuous improvement and quality health care.
This year a lot of planning, recruitment and preparation paid off to result in the opening of the high
dependency service, a part of the Tambo Ward. This means that individuals who have higher care needs will
be able to be cared for closer to home, rather than being transferred to another institute.
The service has continued to improve access to care with improvements in the timeliness of care in the
Emergency Department, despite increased need and complexity, and by increasing the number of surgery
procedures provided locally.
Staff innovation has shone this year with the introduction of Pet Therapy to our service. Led by the Speech
Therapy team, this exciting new aspect of our service involves well trained dogs being used for patient
therapy.
Environmental sustainability has been a priority and we are proud of the changes created by our Facilities
and Green Team members. This year 2,166 solar panels were installed on the Bairnsdale Regional Health
Service roof. We switched single use plastic for recyclable material in our cafeteria and continue to
advance our environmental sustainability planning for the future.
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service has worked hard on partnering with consumers in their care - this has
meant offering more education to staff in communicating via a program called ‘Your Thoughts Matter’. We
have embedded a program titled the EPIC Nurse Program, EPIC stands for Engaging Patients in Care. This
program supports staff to ask every patient “what matters to you right now?” each shift, ensuring that
patient’s primary concerns are addressed in a timely manner. We have also established new admission
assessment processes to improve the care for people of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander origin. This
means that the Aboriginal Health Unit are involved in a care planning partnership early and are able to
ensure that any individual who needs to go to Melbourne to receive care is supported when they are
transferred back home.
As part of our work with the Lighthouse Foundation we have built a new Yarning Garden for all to enjoy.
The garden was designed and built with input from our Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander community. It
was enhanced with the support and donation of a number of our community partners. It is a culturally safe
space for patients, families and staff to enjoy the outdoors and have a yarn throughout the day.
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service continues to be supported by an outstanding group of volunteers
including the Kiosk and the Bowerbird Auxiliaries. The volunteers support the service in a number of ways
including operating the kiosk, tending to patient flowers and assisting with helping patients find their way.
We would like to thank them for their time and contribution to the service.
This year was also the last year of service for Ana Talko-Nicholas and Tania Donaldson. Ana has been a
board director for the past 2 years and a member of the Community Advisory Committee. Ana’s very
valuable contribution will be missed. Tania was employed for 16 years at Bairnsdale Regional Health
Service, most recently as Chief Financial Officer/Director of Corporate Services. We thank Ana and
Tania for their time and wish them well in their future endeavours.

Peter Murphy
Chair, Board of Management

BAIRNSDALE REGIONAL HEALTH SERVICE 2018/2019

Robyn Hayles
Chief Executive Officer
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REPORT OF OPERATIONS
Responsible Bodies Declaration
In accordance with the Financial Management Act 1994, I am pleased to present the report of operations for
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service for the year ending 30 June 2019.

Peter Murphy
Chair, Board of Management
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service
21st August 2019

Establishment
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service (BRHS) was established under the Health Services Act 1988. The responsible
Ministers from 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019 were:
The Honourable Jill Hennessy MLA, Minister for Health, Minister for Ambulance Services, July 2018 to
December 2018;
Jenny Mikakos, Minister for Health, Minister for Ambulance Services, since December 2018; and
The Honourable Martin Foley, Minister for Mental Health.

Purpose, Functions, Powers and Duties
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service operates under a guiding Strategic Plan which outlines a clear Vision, Role
Statement and a set of Strategic Objectives, Organisational Principles and Trademark Behaviours that define
our organisation. Bairnsdale Regional Health Service is a sub-regional hospital within the Victorian Health
system with a duty and responsibility to improve the health and wellbeing of the East Gippsland community
by providing accessible, high quality and sustainable health care. This year contributes to the implementation
of the five year Strategic Plan 2017-2021.

Vision
Respected leader of outstanding health care.

Strategic Objectives





Safe, effective care
Skilled, valued and compassionate workforce
Leadership, accountability and a sustainable future
The consumer at the centre

Our Principles
Progressive
BRHS will ensure that our models of care are evidence based and contemporary. We strive to be leaders of
regional health care in a rural environment.
Accountable
BRHS will acknowledge our obligations through a culture of honesty, trust and absolute responsibility for its
actions.
Competent
BRHS will demonstrate compassion, proficiency and knowledge as a learning organisation to ensure our care
is always safe and effective.

BAIRNSDALE REGIONAL HEALTH SERVICE 2018/2019
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Person Centred
BRHS will work in partnership with patients, families and carers to empower them to make informed decisions
about their own health and create a positive patient experience.
Collaborative
BRHS will establish relationships that enhance the delivery of safe, effective and integrated and high quality
health services for the community of East Gippsland.

Nature and range of services provided
BRHS provides a range of multi-disciplinary health services to a growing population over the East Gippsland
Shire which is located in eastern Victoria, between 280 and 550 kilometres from Melbourne.
The East Gippsland Shire Estimated Resident Population as of 30th June 2018 is 46,818, with a population
density of 0.02 persons per hectare.

Statistics

Population
46,818
ABS ERP 2018

Land area
2,094,023
hectares
(20,940 km2)

Population
density
2.2
Persons per km2

BRHS is a comprehensive health service that provides a range of services to the community of East
Gippsland. Situated in Bairnsdale the service provides bed based care, appointment based care and care in
the community and in people’s homes. We work in partnership with a range of agencies, both in and out of
the health arena to ensure sustainability, efficiency and access.
BRHS incorporates an acute hospital that provides a range of services including emergency care, acute
medical and surgical care, pre and ante-natal maternity care, rehabilitation services and drug and alcohol
support services. The facility also provide oncology and dialysis, and a range of specialist consulting services.
Both a modern medical imaging (x-ray) and pathology (outsourced) service are situated alongside the
pharmacy department.
Palliative care support is offered in the hospital and in the home environment.
In addition, BRHS also operates Maddocks Gardens; a highly regarded 90-bed Aged Care facility. The facility
caters for individuals with a variety of care needs, including those with dementia.
BRHS proudly operates a full range of Allied Health Services, Dental, Community and District Nursing
services.
BRHS is the largest employer in the region with over 800 individual staff and an operating revenue of $98
million. Staff work in a variety of roles and have a variety of skills, expertise and experience. Our staff are
committed and work hard every day to ensure that every person gets great care every time. They learn from
mistakes and act with integrity.
BRHS has a well-defined system that enables good governance. It is governed by a Board of Management of
9-10 members. This ensures we meet the health needs of the community today and in the future.
We work with our partners in health, including local General Practice, and community agencies to support
the health and wellbeing of the East Gippsland community.
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Bairnsdale Regional Health Services

BRHS
@Home














BRHS

BRHS

@Hospital

@Community

Allied Health Services
(see full details in
@Community)
Residential Aged Care
o Dementia Care
o Respite Care
Residential In Reach
Service
Hospital in the Home
(HITH)
Falls Prevention Group
Post-Acute Care (PAC)
Home Based Nursing
Services
Community Palliative
Care
Complex Care
Co-ordination
Rehabilitation in the
Home

























Visiting Medical
Specialists
Community Health
Nursing
o Women’s Health
o Adolescent Health
o Breast Care Services
o District Nursing
o Prostate Cancer
Specialist Nurse
Cardiac Rehabilitation
Continence Service
Dental Services
Diabetes Education
Planned Activity Group
(PAG)
Pulmonary Rehabilitation
Allied Health Services
o Physiotherapy
o Occupational Therapy
o Speech Pathology
o Social Work
o Dietetics
o Podiatry
Lymphoedema Clinic
Needle Exchange Program
Complex Care

Executive Team and Support
Volunteer Programs
Risk &Safety
Health Information Services
Facilities
Food Services
ICT
Health Library
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Dialysis
Emergency Services
Geriatric Evaluation and
Management (GEM)
Inpatient Rehabilitation
Transition Care Program
Medical Admitted Day Unit
(MADU)
General Medicine
Medical Imaging
Obstetrics & Gynaecology
Oncology
Paediatrics
Pathology (Provider:
Dorevitch Pathology)
Pharmacy
Stomal Therapy
Surgical Care
Maternity Services
Inpatient Palliative Care
Short Stay Unit (SSU)
Allied Health Services
Aboriginal Health
Visiting Medical
Specialists

Finance
Business Intelligence
Communications
Quality & Service Improvement
Medical Workforce & Education
Environmental Services
People and Culture
Administration
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Visiting Specialists and Medical Officers
Anaesthetist
Dr Ben Turner

Occupational Physician
Dr Jane Greacen

Cardiologists
Dr David Bertovic
Assoc Prof Justin Mariani
Dr James Shaw
Dr Anthony White

Oncologist
Dr Sachin Joshi
Ophthalmologist
Dr Suheb Ahmed

FACRRM
Dr Andre Wannenburg

Orthopaedic Surgeon
Mr George Owen

Gastroenterologists
Dr David Iser
Dr Matthew Kitson
Dr Keith Noack

Paediatricians
Dr Peter Goss
Paediatric Surgeon
Mr Chris Kimber

General Surgeons
Mr Gordon Arthur
Mr Servaise de Kock
Mr Anamitra Sarkar
Mr Turab Pishori

Physicians
Dr Marcel van der Heiden
Dr Kushantha Gunarathne
Dr Shermila Jayasinghe

Geriatrician
Dr Craig Clarke

Rehabilitation Physician
Dr David McConachy

Gynaecologists
Dr Kiran Kalian
Dr Hayley Messenger
Dr Anuradha Sarkar
Dr Gareth Weston

Respiratory Physician
Dr Sameer Karnam

Haematologist
Dr Amanda Ormerod
Hospital in the Home (HITH)
Visiting Medical Officers
Dr Tom Alwyn
Dr Maria Bodenstein
Dr Ian Broom
Dr David Campbell
Dr Jane Greacen
Dr Greg Hayes
Dr Patrick Kinsella
Dr Elizabeth Wearne
Nephrologists
Dr Tim Coughlan
Dr David Hooke
Dr Mardiana Lee
Prof David Power

BAIRNSDALE REGIONAL HEALTH SERVICE 2018/2019

Rheumatologists
Prof Peter Ryan
Dr Timothy Bennett
Urologists
Prof Mark Frydenberg
Assoc Prof Jeremy Grummet
Mr Adam Landau
Vascular Surgeon
Mr Peter Milne
Senior Medical Officers
Dr Mark Pritchard
Dr Don van Wyk
Dr Lindy Washington
Dr Kristine Gilbert
Dr Rob Phair
Subcontracted Services
Pathologists from Dorevitch Pathology
Radiologists from IMED Radiology
Echocardiogram/Stress Echocardiogram Service
from Gippsland Cardiac Tech Pty Ltd
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Visiting Medical Officers
(General Practitioners)
Dr Michael Baker
Dr Graham Bromwich
Dr Ruth Chantler
Dr Ross De Steiger
Dr Romily Hawter
Dr Hulme Hay
Dr Naveen Joshi
Dr Bob Irungu
Dr Laura Linden
Dr David McConville
Dr Jarrod Miles
Dr Antoinette Mowbray
Dr Poh Ng
Dr Daniel Otuonye
Dr Claire Rayner
Dr Philip Sewell
Dr Jo Sharpley
Dr Daryl Smith
Dr John Urie
Dr Sarah Wilmot
Dr Peter Worboys
Dr Sema Yilmaz

BAIRNSDALE REGIONAL HEALTH SERVICE 2018/2019

Field Emergency Medical Officers
Dr Myles Chapman (East Gippsland)
Dr Greg Ivanoff (Central Gippsland)
Dr Sara Renwick-Lau (Mallacoota)
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Board of Management
Peter Murphy - President

Brendon Moar

Appointed July 2013

Appointed July 2015

BA, LLB

BPharm, MPS

Peter Murphy has served on the BRHS Board of
Management since 2013, and is currently the chair.
He also chairs BRHS’ Clinical Credentialing
Committee and Medical Advisory Committee.

Brendon Moar has served on the BRHS Board of
Management since 2015.

Peter is a lawyer specialising in criminal and family
law, and is currently a Director of Warren Graham
and Murphy in Bairnsdale. He is also an active
member of a number of community and sporting
organisations.

Chris Barry – Vice President
Appointed July 2015

He is currently the proprietor and pharmacist in
charge of Corner Amcal in Bairnsdale.
Brendon has been a community pharmacist in East
Gippsland for 12 years, and has a strong interest in
integrated healthcare, indigenous and public
health, and health literacy in regional communities.
Brendon is a board member of the Victorian
Pharmacy Authority, and a member of the East
Gippsland Primary Health Care Network’s Clinical
Advisory Committee.

BSc, GAICD
Chis Barry was appointed to the BRHS Board of
Management in 2015.
Chris is an Emergency Management Project Leader
at the Department of Sustainability and
Environment, and a former CEO of several state
government, statutory authorities and ministerial
taskforces.
He has a long history of involvement with local
school councils in the region, and is currently a
Board Member of Noweyung (Disability Services).

Mendy Urie
Appointed July 2013
MBA, Masters (Strategic Foresight), Dip Mgt,
Mendy Urie has served on the BRHS Board of
Management since 2013.
With a background in nursing and midwifery,
Mendy was on the East Gippsland Shire Council for
seven years, including three years as Mayor.
She is President of women4evolution, a nonprofit
community organisation supporting cultural
development through women's project initiatives,
and is a consultant in individual and collective
transformational practice.

BAIRNSDALE REGIONAL HEALTH SERVICE 2018/2019

Julie Small
Appointed July 2016
Julie Small has served on the BRHS Board of
Management since 2016.
She is the administration manager at Nagle College
in Bairnsdale, and since relocating to East
Gippsland in 2009 has been involved in numerous
fundraising and community projects.
Previously, Julie was a branch manager of the
Paynesville & District Community Bank, and spent
15 years working for the Shell Company of Australia
Ltd.
She is an active member of Bairnsdale Sunrise
Rotary Club and continues to work on projects that
support our local community.

Chad Burrell
Appointed July 2017
BA, BCom, Grad Dip Fin Plan, CA
Chad Burrell has served on the BRHS Board of
Management since 2017.
Chad has over twenty years’ experience working as
a Chartered Accountant and Auditor with a focus
on not for profit organisations. He is a Director of
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a local Accounting Firm and he is actively involved
in a number of community organisations.
Simon Fraser
Appointed July 2017
MBBS, FRACP (Child Health), FRACMA, FASCHM,
MAICD
Dr Simon Fraser was appointed to the BRHS Board
of Management in 2017.
Dr Simon Fraser has specialised in Paediatrics
(newborn and premature babies and more recently
general paediatrics) and Medical Administration.
He has worked in the Australian health system for
over 35 years and in Victoria since 1993.
He has worked in medical administration since the
year 2000 and has held senior medical executive
positions in a number of health services in
Gippsland since 2005. He is particularly interested
and experienced in clinical governance as well as
workforce and human resource management.

Liza has worked professionally in the health sector,
at both State and Federal level, for the last 30 years.
She has experience in mental health, complaints
management (she was the health complaints
commissioner for Victoria for a while in the
nineties), health law and health consumer
advocacy. More recently she has focused on health
governance, serving on a number of health service
Boards of Management and health regulatory
bodies, as well as working internationally as an
adviser in health law to health aid agencies in PNG
and in Indonesia.
Liza is passionate about the provision of safe
quality health care to all. She is delighted to have
been appointed to the Bairnsdale Regional Health
Service Board - as this enables her to bring her
commitment to working for good, quality patient
centred health care, plus her experience, back to
East Gippsland again.

Bruce Hammond
Appointed January 2019

Ana Talko-Nicholas
Appointed July 2017 – retired June 2019
BA/LLB
Ana grew up in Bairnsdale and moved back to the
area nine years ago. She has two young children at
primary school in East Gippsland. She is a family
lawyer practising family law, child protection law,
family violence law and as an Independent
Children’s Lawyer. Ana has spent eight years
working as a lawyer with Victorian Legal Aid
assisting disadvantaged people in the community
and has now opened her own law practice in
Bairnsdale.

Bruce Hammond joined the BRHS Board of
Management in 2019.
He is a civil engineer with over 35 years of
experience in the Victorian public sector, most
recently as the Managing Director of East
Gippsland Water.
Bruce is the Managing Director of a regional
consulting practice and the Chairperson of Lakes
Entrance Fishermen Limited, Deputy Chairperson of
Noweyung, and a member of the Australian Water
Association.

Liza Newby
Appointed January 2019
Ll.B (Hons.) M.A., F.A.I.M., Grad. Dip. (Counselling)
Liza has lived in Mallacoota, East Gippsland for
many years and has strong community ties there.
She understands well the problems of providing
medical and health care in remote communities,
having also worked in the Omeo Health Service
while living in Mallacoota. Her background is in the
law, particularly health law, although she is semi
retired now.

BAIRNSDALE REGIONAL HEALTH SERVICE 2018/2019
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Bairnsdale Regional Health Service Board of Management 2018-2019
(L-R) Chris Barry, Liza Newby, Bruce Hammond, Brendon Moar, Julie Small, Chad Burrell, Peter Murphy
(Chair), Mendy Urie, Simon Fraser and Ana Talko—Nicholas
Board of Management Attendance 2018/19
For the 2018/19 period there were 12 meetings
held. No meeting was held in January, due to the
annual Board break.
Angela Hutson (ret. 08/18)
Peter Murphy
Chris Barry
Julie Small
Mendy Urie
Brendon Moar
Chad Burrell
Simon Fraser
Ana Talko-Nicholas
Liza Newby
Bruce Hammond

01/02
12/12
09/12
10/12
10/12
11/12
12/12
11/12
09/12
06/06
06/06

Brendon Moar
Chris Barry
Bruce Hammond (February through June)
Clinical Credentialing Committee
The Clinical Credentialing Committee is a subcommittee of the Board of Management. The
committee is responsible for assessing the
professional expertise, competence, reputation and
authenticity of the qualifications of medical staff
seeking appointment or re-appointment to the
medical staff of BRHS. The committee meets as
required.
Committee members during 2018/19:
Peter Murphy (Chair)
Simon Fraser

Board of Management Sub-Committees

Ana Talko-Nicholas

Audit and Risk Committee
The Audit and Risk Committee is a sub-committee
of the Board of Management. The committee
assists the Board in fulfilling its governance
responsibilities relating to and including the
accounting and financial reporting process,
external and internal audit functions, the risk
management system and legal and regulatory
requirements. The committee meets a minimum of
six times each year.
Committee members during 2018/19:
Chad Burrell (Chair)
Jessica Cane (external contract member)

BAIRNSDALE REGIONAL HEALTH SERVICE 2018/2019

Clinical Quality and Performance Committee
The Clinical Quality and Performance Committee is
a
sub-committee
of
the
Board
of
Management. The committee works closely with
the operational executive and management group
to ensure clinical performance and quality achieve
the strategic goals of the organisation and meet
consumer needs. The committee sets the
foundations for an organisational culture that
provides safe clinical practice and improved health
outcomes for consumers. The committee’s work is
guided by an organisational Clinical Governance
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Framework that includes specific clinical targets
and KPIs that monitor clinical safety, risk and care
provision. The committee also oversees the clinical
requirements of a number of expected Standards
including the National Safety and Quality in
Healthcare Standards to achieve Australian Council
of Healthcare Standards Accreditation and
accreditation by other relevant bodies. The
committee meets every second month (six times
per year.)
Committee members during 2018/19:
Mendy Urie (Chair)
Simon Fraser
Peter Murphy (July through October)
Liza Newby (March through June)
Community Advisory Committee
The Community Advisory Committee is a subcommittee of the Board of Management.

BAIRNSDALE REGIONAL HEALTH SERVICE 2018/2019

The committee provides a structured partnership
between consumer, community and the health
service. The committee aims to ensure the system
reflects consumer need and expectation wherever
possible. It aims to create a system that is
responsive to patient, carer and consumer input to
improve the safety and quality of care delivered.
The committee meets bi-monthly.
Board Members during 2018/2019:
Julie Small (Chair)
Ana Talko-Nicholas
Community Members during 2018/2019:
Jessica Murray
Jennifer Whitworth
Louise Kelly
Maria Beasley
Tony Brett
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Chief Executive Officer and Executive management
Robyn Hayles
Chief Executive Officer
BNsg, MPH, GAICD
The CEO is responsible for the effective operation and general direction of all BRHS business. The CEO enables
systems that support the delivery of safe, integrated care. The CEO role advises and makes recommendations
to the board supporting the delivery of the strategic objectives and future planning.
David McConachy
Director of Medical Services and Chief Medical Officer
MBBS, DPRM, FACRM (RACP)
The Medical Services Directorate at BRHS supports the operation and development of the Medical Workforce,
Pharmacy and Medical Imaging Departments and the oversight of the contracted Pathology services. The
directorate oversees the clinical and research governance of the health service, working collaboratively with
the East Gippsland Regional Clinical School to support medical student placements at BRHS. The directorate is
also responsible for the training and development of Interns and Junior Hospital Medical Officers at BRHS. As
Chief Medical Officer, the role leads and ensures the professional advancement of our medical staff and
services.
Bernadette Hammond
Director of Clinical Operations and Chief Nurse and Midwife
RN, RM, CCN, BNrsg, MHSM (Monash)
The Director holds operational responsibility for many of the clinical services at BRHS to meet the goals and
objectives of the Strategic Plan and DHHS agreed priorities. These services include: operating theatres and
surgical services, maternity services, palliative and end of life care, medical and surgical inpatient care, high
dependency unit, emergency department, rehabilitation and sub-acute inpatient unit, day procedure units
including dialysis and chemotherapy, complex care program and alcohol and other drug services. This director
also holds responsibility for the organisational-wide quality, risk and organisational effectiveness unit. As the
Chief Nurse and Midwife, the Director also provides the leadership for the nursing and midwifery workforce
and their professional development and holds responsibility for the clinical education unit including the health
library.
Bernadette Brown
Director of People and Culture
BA (Hons), Dip Bus Mgt, Grad Dip Strategic HR Mgt
The Director is responsible for the provision of a range of People and Culture services including recruitment,
payroll/salary packaging, contract management, employee wellbeing programs; traineeships, industrial
relations, Work Cover and Occupational Health and Safety. The role ensures the operational practices are
consistent with the Fair Work Act, respondent Enterprise Agreements and other relevant legislation. The
Director provides advice and support to the Executive and Department Heads regarding change management
and industrial relations matters. The position is also responsible for overseeing the provision of Administration
and Reception services, Accommodation Coordination, Volunteer Coordination; and Communication and
Marketing Services.

BAIRNSDALE REGIONAL HEALTH SERVICE 2018/2019
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Linda Daniel
Director of Community Wellbeing & Partnerships
BComm, Grad Dip Bus (Rural Health), ACHSM RMRP Graduate
The Director of Community Wellbeing & Partnerships leads a group of clinical services focused on the provision
of keeping people well, restoring health and enhancing wellbeing. There are two streams of service provision
within the Directorate. One stream includes services with a focus on the ageing population including oversight
of the 90 bed Residential Aged Care facility and the community Planned Activity Group program. The second
stream includes community and appointment based services which link consumers to acute care and support
discharge back to the community, or provide treatment aimed at enhancing physical function and
wellbeing. The Director’s responsibilities include Community Health Services, Dental program, Consulting
Rooms, Central Intake including NDIS and Post-Acute Care, Home Based Nursing services and the Aboriginal
Health Unit. In addition, the role ensures the integrated delivery of Allied Health services made up of
Occupational Therapy, Speech Pathology, Physiotherapy, Social Work, Dietetics and Allied Health Assistants.
Bill Morfis
Director of Corporate Services and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) – appointed June 2019
BHA, MCom, CPA
The Director is responsible for the provision of a range of support services including: General Services
(Facilities, Food Services, Environmental Services and Security); Procurement; Finance; Information and
Communications Technology; Business Intelligence; Fundraising; and Health Information. It ensures the
operational practices are consistent with the Financial Management Act 1994, Standing Directions of the
Minister for Health and Health Purchasing Victoria guidelines. The position is responsible for the provision of
clinical costing and financial planning. The position oversees the provision of Corporate Services ensuring they
are integrated and aligned to deliver BRHS’ strategic objectives.

The BRHS Executive Team (L-R)
Bernadette Hammond, Linda Daniel, David McConachy, Robyn Hayles, Bill Morfis and Bernadette Brown

BAIRNSDALE REGIONAL HEALTH SERVICE 2018/2019
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Health Library

Nursing Education

Alcohol and Other Drugs Program

Maternity

Surgical Services

Renal Dialysis

Oncology

◦ Short Stay Unit (SSU)

• Emergency Department

• Infection Prevention

• Patient Liaison

• Patient Svcs Coordinators

• Complex Care

◦ Transition Care Program

◦ Rehabilitation / GEM

◦ Flanagan Ward

• Sub-acute Care

• Rotamah Ward

• Tambo Ward / HDU

• Regional Quality - Bush Nursing

• Consumer Engagement Strategy

• Regional Quality

• Innovation & Improvement

• Quality & Risk

Organisational Effectiveness

• Preadmission Clinic

• Day Procedure Unit

• CSSD

• Elective Surgery Access

• Operating Theatres

◦ Echocardiography

◦ Pathology

• Contract management:

• Medical Imaging

• Pharmacy

• Medical Workforce

Medical Support Services

Medico-Legal Liaison

Regional Clinical Governance

• Security

Consulting Rooms

Oral Health

• Environmental Services

• Food Services

• Facilities

General Services

Fundraising

Business Intelligence Unit

ICT

Health Information

Procurement

• My Aged Care

• Planned Activity Groups

• Residential Aged Care

Healthy Ageing Programs

• Diabetes

• Continence

• Health Promotion

Community Nursing

• Hospital in the Home (HITH)

• District Nursing

• Palliative Care

Home-Based Nursing

Central Intake

Aboriginal Health Unit

Allied Health

Allied Health & Community Services

Finance

Research and Ethics

DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY WELLBEING AND

Clinical Operations

DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE SERVICES
PARTNERSHIPS

CHIEF

MEDICAL OFFICER

DIRECTOR OF MEDICAL SERVICES /

BOARD SUBCOMMITTEES

NURSE AND MIDWIFE

DIRECTOR OF CLINICAL OPERATIONS / CHIEF

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

Volunteers

Communication & Marketing

• Work Experience

• Traineeships

• Learning & Development

• Accommodation

• Organisation Wide Admin Svcs

Payroll & Salary Packaging

• Positive Health & Empl. Wellbeing

• Employee Assistance Program

Wellbeing

• OH&S

• WorkCover & Return to Work

Workplace Relations

Onboarding

Employee Recruitment and

DIRECTOR OF PEOPLE AND CULTURE

EXECUTIVE OFFICE SUPPORT

Key Initiatives, Projects and Future Plans
2018/19 was a year of improvement at BRHS. A number of key initiatives and projects were completed, supporting
the future direction of the organisation. While the list is not exclusive, key initiatives are listed below.
Key Initiatives and Projects included:
 Introduction of Pet Therapy to our service.
 Trained 199 staff in ‘Your Thoughts Matter’ training provided by Deakin University. This work is aimed
at improving communication between staff and consumers. BRHS are one of two sites in Victoria to
undertake this project.
 Opening of the Yarning Garden, situated outside the Oncology and Consulting Rooms area.
 A continued improvement in the care of our Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander community members.
This has included leading the way with a new admission assessment process which has resulted in
increased support for our community members both here and when they may need to attend hospitals
in Melbourne.
 Implemented a daily operating system titled “Safe, Timely, Care”. This ensures all services and
processes are ready for business everyday and that system issues are highlighted and addressed in a
timely and responsive manner
 BRHS became a signatory of GROW East Gippsland. This signatory reinforces current practice to ensure
local procurement is undertaken where possible, it also highlights new opportunity for current practice.
 The High Dependency Unit, to care for unwell and unstable patients, commenced working with the
Alfred Health Service to enable the unit to deliver to its full capability.
 Our medication management improved with an increased partnership between the medical and
pharmacy staff.
 Following last year’s review of the operating theatres, changes were consolidated in theatre service.
These changes have been challenging for all involved and it is exciting to see their full implementation.
 Trained and introduced new contact officers for staff to confidentially contact if concerned about
bullying and harassment in the work place.
 Introduction of a new Employee Assist Program that provides free confidential support for staff in a
comprehensive array of areas including: relationship management and communication, stress
management, career planning, financial management, nutrition and lifestyle support
 With a refreshed approach to the BRHS web site and intranet site, new and increased stories on
Facebook and additional internal communication with new newsletters, blogs and staff forums, our
communication functions were enhanced.
 Recognition by the DHHS of our role in Rural Generalist Training.
 Jointly with Gippsland & East Gippsland Aboriginal Co-operative, improved access by offering allied
health services to the indigenous community.
 East Gippsland Shire Council/Bairnsdale Aquatic Recreation Centre and BRHS Allied Health have
worked to enable joint support of recreation centre program initiatives. This will support our
community to link into the great recreational activities available in our town.
 Provided community forums on My Health Record, supporting the Primary Healthcare Network in
informing our community on their health information options.
 Enhanced our sustainability with the installation of solar panels on Maddocks Gardens.
Future Plans
BRHS continues to work towards achieving the 2017-2021 strategic goals. We will continue to drive
improvements in partnering with consumers. We will continue to be a leading adopter in ‘Your Thoughts
Matter’. We will undertake a focused action plan to ensure BRHS is a safe and encouraging place to work.
BRHS will foster innovation and enhance our human and technical capability to be at the forefront of service
provision within regional Victoria.
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Workforce Information
Employment Principles
BRHS ensures that all employment processes are followed to assess applicants against pre-determined key
selection criteria in order to appoint the most suitable applicant for the role.
Employment to BRHS is open to all applicants without systemic, hidden or apparent bias on the grounds of
gender, race, disability, sexuality, age, marital status, pregnancy, potential pregnancy, breastfeeding, religious
belief, medical record, irrelevant criminal record or trade union activity and reflects employment best practice.
Appointments, employee conditions of employment and salary classifications are applied in accordance with
the applicable Enterprise Agreement and the Victorian Government’s Public Entity Executive Remuneration
Policy. Employees are correctly classified in workforce data collections.
Code of Conduct
BRHS is committed to the Public Sector values and workplace equity principles. This includes equal opportunity,
freedom from all forms of discrimination and creating and maintaining a work environment where all
employees are treated with dignity and respect. The integrity of the organisation is based on embracing
diversity and valuing human rights.
As a public health service, BRHS employees are required to abide by the ‘Code of Conduct for Victorian Public
Sector Employees’ (Code of Conduct) and BRHS policy.
Certain professionals within the health service are subject to professional codes of conduct that establish
specific behaviours relevant to their profession. Where this is the case individuals are expected to observe the
‘Code of Conduct for Victorian Public Sector Employees’ in conjunction with their professional code of conduct.
BRHS and its employees will comply with the Public Sector Values; Responsiveness, Integrity, Impartiality,
Accountability, Respect, Leadership, Human Rights.
BRHS has established a set of Trademark Behaviours which employees are contracted to demonstrate in their
employment arrangements.
Trademark Behaviours
•
•
•
•
•

Display trust and mutual respect
Courage to change
Step up and take responsibility
Be positive & support others
Learn and apply knowledge

Occupational Health and Safety (OH&S)
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service is committed to providing a safe environment for everyone and complies
with obligations under the Occupational Health and Safety Act 2004, Occupational Health and Safety
Regulations 2017 and other legislation and standards that support safety. Risk assessments, drills, audits and
workplace inspections are conducted to ensure the workplace environment is safe and records are retained by
BRHS in line with archiving requirements. The BRHS Occupational Health & Safety Framework is based on
AS/NZ 4804:2001 (Occupational health and safety management systems – General guidelines on principles,
systems and supporting techniques) that describes how BRHS complies with the principles of occupational
health & safety.
BRHS has an active OH&S committee comprising 16 trained Health & Safety Representatives and additional
staff in key roles that support workplace safety. Ongoing continuous improvement in workplace safety is
implemented within the People and Culture work plan. BRHS has been successful in obtaining funding via
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DHHS grants to build a Behavioural Assessment Room in the Emergency Department. In addition, a review of
occupational violence and aggression training for staff has taken place and an external provider has been
engaged to provide face to face training to frontline staff in the second half of 2019.
Incident data and OH&S indicators within the Riskman incident management system is monitored by relevant
committees. BRHS has adopted a number of performance indicators. The indicators, targets and outcomes for
2018/19 are set out below.
Objective

Target

2018/19

Monitor

Indicator

Outcomes

No serious harm

Zero workplace

ISR 1

Monthly report to

No ISR1

occurs in the

death or serious

incident = 0

OH&S Committee

incidents were

workplace

injury

Executive Safety and

reported.

Quality Committee
Near/miss and hazard

Number of

ISR 2 & 3

Monthly Report to

ISR 2 & 3

incidents are captured

Incidents where

incidents as

OH&S Committee

incidents as a

and addressed before

harm occurs is less

a percentage

harm can be caused

than number of no

of all OHS

harm/near miss

incidents =

incidents

<50%

Executive Safety and
Quality Committee

percentage of
all OHS
incidents =
41%

The following table sets out the number of reported hazards or incidents registered over the past three financial
years.
BRHS OH&S Statistics
Number of reported hazards/incidents for the year
per 100 FTE
Number of “lost time” standard claims for the year
per 100 full time equivalent staff members.

2018/19
36.44
1.79

2017/18

2016/17

51.29

42.29

0.37

1.31

The below table highlights the average cost per claim for the past three financial years (including average
claims costs and an estimate of outstanding claims costs as advised by WorkSafe)
Average Claims Cost
Actual

Average Claim
Cost Estimate

Number of standard
claims

2018/19

$12,780

$88,642

10

2017/18

$39,800

$205,422

2

2016/17

$30,889

$46,566

9

Of particular note is the high estimate of costs for the claims lodged in 2017/18. Both claims were high risk
however due to early intervention and the identification of alternate duties, both employees were returned to
work undertaking alternate duties.
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Workforce Statistics
Labour Category

JUNE
Current Month FTE

JUNE
YTD FTE

2018

2019

Nursing

223.25

229.44

237.52

224.65

Administration and Clerical

100.2

103.79

99.81

107.08

Medical Support

15.5

12.11

13.54

11.36

Hotel and Allied Services

116.19

134.27

110.56

136.41

Medical Officers

5.1

7.16

6.25

6.64

Hospital Medical Officers

21.7

19.21

23.24

22.29

Sessional Clinicians

0.96

.73

1.11

.75

Ancillary Staff (Allied Health)

38.48

49.79

36.21

48.39

521.38

556.50

528.24

557.57

Total

2018

2019

Please note that the 2018 Annual Report figures have been updated in alignment with the Workforce Data and Comparison Report
2018 and is at a variance to the figures presented for 2018 from other local systems.

Financial Results
2019
$000

2018
$000

2017
$000

2016
$000

2015
$000

613

263

(357)

349

828



OPERATING RESULT



Total Revenue

98,110

93,184

88,615

80,797

74,504



Total Expenses

100,749

95,349

88,781

83,669

76,525



Net Result from Transactions

(2,638)

(2,165)

(165)

(2,902)

(2,022)



(191)

(66)

175

18

0



Other economic flows included in the
net result for the year
Net result

(2,830)

(2,231)

9

(2,883)

(2,022)



Total Assets

88,739

77,359

74,324

74,387

74,752



Total Liabilities

33,243

30,790

26,070

26,143

24,047



Net Assets/Total Equity

55,496

46,569

48,254

48,245

50,705

*The Operating Result is the result for which the Health Service is monitored in its Statement of Priorities
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Reconciliation between the Net Result from transactions reported in the model to the Operating result
as agreed in the Statement of Priorities
2019
$000
Net operating result*
613
Capital purpose income
1,154
Specific income
0
Assets provided free of charge
0
Assets received free of charge
0
Expenditure for capital purpose
0
Depreciation and amortisation
(4,330)
Impairment of non-financial assets
0
Finance costs (other)
(75)
Net result from transactions
(2,638)
*The Net operating result is the result which the health service is monitored against in its Statement of
Priorities

Notes:
Finance Costs – Other (State Funded activity)
Nil
* The operating result is the result for which the health service is monitored in its Statement of Priorities. The
result excludes capital items such as funding and donations for capital projects, depreciation of assets, interest
on borrowings and revaluations of assets and liabilities. The net result for the year includes all revenue and
expenses except revaluations. For 2018-19 the operating result was $0.61M surplus and the net result was
$2.830M deficit.
Significant changes in financial position
BRHS continues to recognise the interest free loan with the Department of Health & Human Services for the
procurement of an extensive solar panel system that was commenced during the last financial year.
Operational and budgetary objectives
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service continues to strive to meet the objectives as set out in our Business and
Strategic Plans as well as those set by government in the Statement of Priorities and related policies.
To achieve our objectives we need to continually have a comprehensive understanding of our resources and
what major influences are impacting those resources. We continue to do this by working within the parameters
of our Strategic Financial Plan. We monitor and manage our resources to ensure the organisation can meet its
obligations and grow the business.
The major influences on our business from a financial planning context continue to be: Demographics and East
Gippsland Population Growth; Infrastructure and Asset Management; Service Provision Needs; Workforce
Planning; Recruitment and Retention; Government Funding and Reform; Employee Entitlements; Technology;
and Community and Consumer Opinion.
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service continues to perform relatively well in terms of achieving its annual
deliverables for the year as required by the policy and funding guidelines. Acute WIES was under target due
to gaps in specialist workforce areas.
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The particular highlights of the year included:










The new Urology Procedures and Bladder Installation Clinic Bathroom build, within the old Fraser Ward,
was completed on time and under budget.
The Installation of $1.2M of solar PV panels to both the Aged Care and Acute facilities commenced in Dec
2018 and is due for completion early in the new financial year
The installation of 2 new 715 Kva generator sets began in Nov 2018 and is due for completion early in the
new financial year. Associated works with the replacement of the Ausnet transformer are scheduled for
Aug 2019. The expected overall project costs remain on track to be within the original funded $800K.
The application for $545K of Regional Health Infrastructure Funding for the proposed Birthing Suites was
successful. Architects have been engaged, and building work is expected to commence early in 2020.
The Behavioural Assessment Room designs based on DHHS guidelines were approved and funding of
$292K, successfully sourced. Architects and civil engineers have been engaged with the view to go to
tender early in the new financial year.
The Flanagan, Rotamah, Oncology and Dialysis ‘nurse call’ systems were upgraded and the Theatre ‘nurse
call’ system replacement commenced during the year. Upon completion, we will have replaced seven (7)
separate ‘nurse call’ systems throughout the hospital with one integrated system.
An electronic bridge was configured between the patient monitoring equipment in the Emergency
Department and the patient monitoring equipment in the Tambo ward enhancing the safe and timely
access to patient transfer information.

Major changes or factors affecting achievement of operational objectives
There were no major changes or factors affecting the performance of Bairnsdale Regional Health Service
during the 2018/19 financial year. Access to specialised medical staff impacted our ability to meet acute
WIES targets.
Events subsequent to balance date
There were no events subsequent to balance date for BRHS relating to the 2018/19 financial year.
Consultancies
In 2018-2019, there were 15 consultancies where the total fees payable to the consultants were less than
$10,000. The total expenditure incurred during 2018-2019 in relation to these consultancies is $53,551.
Consultancies over $10,000 are reflected below.
Consultant
Purpose of
Start
Consultancy
date

Aspex Consulting

3M Australia Pty
Ltd

KPMG

Assessment of the
drug and alcohol
rehab facilities
DRG (diagnosticrelated groups)
assurance
program
Review of
consulting suites

End
date

Total
approved
project fee
(excluding
GST)
$11,480

Expenditure
2018-19
(excluding
GST)

Future
Expenditure
(excluding
GST)

$11,480

-

March
2019

June
2019

March
2019

April
2019

$33,200

$33,200

-

June
2019

Septem
ber
2019

$87,582

$26,725

$61,307

Information and Communications Technology (ICT) expenditure
ICT expenditure represents an entity’s costs in providing business-enabling ICT services and consists of the
following cost elements:
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•
•
•
•

Operating and capital expenditure (including depreciation);
ICT services - internally and externally sourced;
Cost in providing ICT services (including personnel & facilities) across the agency, whether funded through
a central ICT budget or through other budgets; and
Cost in providing ICT services to other organisations.

Non-Business As Usual (Non- BAU) expenditure- is a subset of ICT expenditure that relates to extending or
enhancing current ICT capabilities and are usually run as projects.
Business As Usual (BAU) expenditure- includes all remaining ICT expenditure other than Non-BAU ICT
expenditure and typically relates to ongoing activities to operate and maintain the current ICT capability.
The total Information and Communication Technology (ICT) expenditure incurred during 2018/19 is
$2,787,876(excluding GST) with the details shown below:
Business As Usual (BAU)

$2,555,191

ICT expenditure Total (excluding GST)
Non-Business As Usual (non-BAU) ICT expenditure

$232,685

(Total= Operational Expenditure and Capital Expenditure)
(excluding GST)

Non BAU Operational expenditure (excluding GST)

$0

Non BAU Capital expenditure (excluding GST)

$232,685

Freedom of Information (FOI) Act 1982)
The FOI Act 1982 gives people the right of access to information held by Bairnsdale Regional Health Service
and applications for access to information and records are processed in accordance with the FOI Act by the
Health Information Manager under delegation from the Director of Medical Services. BRHS’ ‘Freedom of
Information Patient Information’ brochure gives guidance for FOI applicants on how to make a request, costs
involved and contact details. This brochure along with the Freedom of Information Application form is available
on the BRHS website.
Health Services charge a fee for FOI requests in accordance with the guidelines set by the Department of
Justice. Fees for Medico-Legal requests are also received. The revenue for this financial year is $7,288.00. The
FOI application fee is waived for those applicants holding a health care card, those who are of Aboriginal or
Torres Strait Islander origin, or who demonstrate financial hardship.
In accordance with Part II of the FOI Act 1982, Bairnsdale Regional Health Service (BRHS) is required to publish
certain statements relating to its functions, processes and documents held. This is contained in the Freedom
of Information Statement II Publication of Information, which is available on the BRHS website.
Type of request

Number Processed

Freedom of Information

106

Medico-Legal

120

Total

226

The majority of requests for this financial year were acceded to.
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Building Act 1993
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service complies with the building and maintenance provisions of the Building Act
1993.
All reasonable steps have been taken to ensure that the building and maintenance provisions of the Building
Act 1993 and all fire safety measures fulfil their required purpose, and that procedures are in place for this to
continue for the next twelve months.
The BRHS facilities have been maintained and will continue to be maintained for the next twelve months and
any outstanding fire safety items that do not satisfy the Capital Development Guidelines Series 7 – Fire Risk
Management dated August 2013, have been reported, reviewed and scheduled for action by a pre determined
date. Emergency management and evacuation procedures are in place and exercised to meet Australian
Standards AS 4083 Planning for emergencies – Health care facilities or AS 3745 Planning for emergencies in
facilities.
Protected Disclosure Act 2012
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service was not required to disclose any issues under the Protected Disclosure Act
2012 in the financial year 2018/19.
National Competition Policy
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service complied with relevant policies with respect to the National Competition
Policy, including:
i.
ii.

the requirements of the Government policy statement, Competitive Neutrality Policy Victoria; and
Subsequent reforms.

Carers Recognition Act 2012
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service is aware of and complies with the requirements of the Carers Recognition
Act 2012, and was not required to make any disclosures during the reporting period. As a care support
organisation, Bairnsdale Regional Health Service:
•
•

•

takes all practicable measures to ensure that its employees and agents have an awareness and
understanding of the care relationship principles
takes all practicable measures to ensure that persons who are in care relationships and who are receiving
services in relation to the care relationship from BRHS have an awareness and understanding of the care
relationship principles
takes all practicable measures to ensure that BRHS and its employees and agents reflect the care
relationship principles in developing, providing or evaluating support and assistance for persons in care
relationships.

Safe Patient Care Act 2015
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service has no matters to report in relation to its obligations under Section 40 of
the Safe Patient Care Act 2015.
Environmental Performance
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service’s Environmental Sustainability Committee has met bi-monthly during the
2018/19 financial year and worked on achieving targets as set out in the Environmental Management
Framework.
The Framework was reviewed in 2018 and updated to 2021.
BRHS recognises that environmental sustainability is one of the important issues for our global community and
strives to maintain a high standard of environmental care in conducting our activities.
Some key initiatives and achievements include:
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Successful installation of 222 80Kw solar PV panels to the Aged Care facility in March 2019. Initial results
are showing a YTD (June 2019) saving of 24.4MWh electricity and 45T of carbon emissions
Installation commenced in May 2019 of 700Kw of solar panels (1,944 panels) to the Acute campus. The
expected completion date is late July 2019.
Expansion of sensor lighting throughout the Hospital’s non critical areas
Ongoing replacement lighting program using LED lights
General battery disposal buckets placed throughout the hospital – 425 kg of used batteries collected.
E-waste collected and recycled - 2366 kg collected
Used cooking oil collected and recycled – 1260 litres

BRHS Energy Consumption (Electricity & Gas)
Financial Year

Total energy consumed (Gj)

CHG Emissions (tonnes CO2-e)

2013/14

23,448

3,975

2014/15

24,796

4,234

2015/16

26,374

4,486

2016/17

25,428

4,291

2017/18

25,127

4,159

2018/19

23,843

4,030

BRHS’s total energy (Electricity & Gas) consumption has decreased by an impressive 6% during the last 12
months, however, overall energy consumption is heavily influenced by seasonal conditions. Mild winters and
cooler summers are the major contributor to variations in energy usage. The Tambo Ward building expansion
and associated shutting down of the Fraser ward would have also had a positive impact on the overall level of
energy usage.
The replacement of the MRI chiller package in the previous financial year, to a more energy efficient and reliable
unit, will have also had a significant energy saving impact over the last 12 months.
A replacement program for old air conditioners to modern, energy efficient, invertor controlled units continues,
throughout all BRHS sites.
The BRHS Dining Room has undertaken several initiatives to remove plastics from landfill and the environment
including:





Transitional replacement of plastic knives, forks & spoons with bamboo utensils
Replacement of plastic food containers with ceramic plates for all food to be consumed within the
Dining Room. Only single size containers are now offered for take away portions
Transitional replacement of approx. 125,000 plastic cups/year with a bio-degradable cup.
Removal of single use plastic straws from the Dining Room servery.

Statement of availability of additional information
Consistent with FRD 22H (Section 5.19) the details in respect of the items listed below have been retained by
BRHS and are available to the relevant Ministers, Members of Parliament and the public on request (subject to
the Freedom of Information requirements, if applicable):
a) Declarations of pecuniary interests have been duly completed by all relevant officers
b) Details of shares held by senior officers as nominee or held beneficially;
c) Details of publications produced by the entity about itself, and how these can be obtained;
d) Details of changes in prices, fees, charges, rates and levies charged by the Health Service;
e) Details of any major external reviews carried out on the Health Service;
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f) Details of major research and development activities undertaken by the Health Service that are not
otherwise covered either in the report of operations or in a document that contains the financial statements
and report of operations;
g) Details of overseas visits undertaken including a summary of the objectives and outcomes of each visit;
h) Details of major promotional, public relations and marketing activities undertaken by the Health Service to
develop community awareness of the Health Service and its services;
i)

Details of assessments and measures undertaken to improve the occupational health and safety of
employees;

j)

General statement on industrial relations within the Health Service and details of time lost through
industrial accidents and disputes which are not otherwise detailed in the report of operations;

k) A list of major committees sponsored by the Health Service, the purposes of each committee and the extent
to which those purposes have been achieved;

l) Details of all consultancies and contractors including consultants/contractors engaged, services provided,
and expenditure committed for each engagement.
Victorian Industry Participation Policy Act 2003
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service is required to provide information for contracts commenced and/or
completed in the financial year under the Victorian Industry Participation Policy (VIPP) Act 2003.
In 2018-2019 there were no contracts requiring disclosure under the Local Jobs First Policy.
The objectives of the Local Jobs First – VIPP are:




Promoting employment and business growth by expanding market opportunities for local industry
Providing contractors with increased access to, and raised awareness of, local industry capability
Exposing local industry to world’s best practice in workplace innovation, e-commerce and use of new
technologies and materials and
Developing local industry’s international competitiveness and flexibility in responding to changing
global markets by giving local industry a fair opportunity to compete against foreign suppliers
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FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT COMPLIANCE ATTESTATION
I, Peter Murphy, on behalf of the Responsible Body, certify that Bairnsdale Regional Health Service has
complied with the applicable Standing Directions made under the Financial Management Act 1994 and
Instructions.

Peter Murphy
Board Chair
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service
21st August 2019
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Bairnsdale Regional Health Service
Board Member’s, Accountable Officer’s and Chief Finance & Accounting Officer’s declaration
The attached financial statements for Bairnsdale Regional Health Service have been prepared in accordance
with Direction 5.2 of the Standing Directions of the Assistant Treasurer under the Financial Management Act
1994, applicable Financial Reporting Directions, Australian Accounting Standards including interpretations,
and other mandatory professional reporting requirements.
We further state that, in our opinion, the information set out in the comprehensive operating statement,
balance sheet, statement of changes in equity, cash flow statement and accompanying notes, presents fairly
the financial transactions during the year ended 30 June 2019 and the financial position of Bairnsdale
Regional Health Service at 30 June 2019.
At the time of signing, we are not aware of any circumstance which would render any particulars included
in the financial statements to be misleading or inaccurate.
We authorise the attached financial statements for issue on 21st August 2019.

Peter Murphy
Chair
Board of Management

Robyn Hayles
Accountable Officer

Bill Morfis
Chief Finance Officer

Bairnsdale Regional
Health Service

Bairnsdale Regional
Health Service

Bairnsdale Regional
Health Service

21st August 2019

21st August 2019

21st August 2019
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ATTESTATIONS
DATA INTEGRITY
I, Robyn Hayles, certify that Bairnsdale Regional Health Service has put in place appropriate internal controls
and processes to ensure that reported data accurately reflects actual performance. Bairnsdale Regional Health
Service has critically reviewed these controls and processes during the year.

Robyn Hayles
Chief Executive Officer
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service
21st August 2019

CONFLICT OF INTEREST
I, Robyn Hayles, certify that Bairnsdale Regional Health Service has put in place appropriate internal controls
and processes to ensure that it has complied with the requirements of hospital circular 07/2017 Compliance
reporting in health portfolio entities (Revised) and has implemented a ‘Conflict of Interest’ policy consistent
with the minimum accountabilities required by the VPSC. Declaration of private interest forms have been
completed by all executive staff within Bairnsdale Regional Health Service and members of the board, and all
declared conflicts have been addressed and are being managed. Conflict of interest is a standard agenda item
for declaration and documenting at each executive board meeting.

Robyn Hayles
Chief Executive Officer
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service
21st August 2019

INTEGRITY, FRAUD AND CORRUPTION
I, Robyn Hayles, certify that Bairnsdale Regional Health Service has put in place appropriate internal controls
and processes to ensure that Integrity, fraud and corruption risks have been reviewed and addressed at
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service during the year.

Robyn Hayles
Chief Executive Officer
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service
21st August 2019
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Reduce State-wide Risks

Build Healthy Neighbourhoods

Everyone understands their
own health and risks

Strategies

A system geared to
prevention as much as
treatment

Better Health

Our Goal

Build Healthy Neighbourhoods
Continue to actively contribute to the PCP
governance and East Gippsland’s Municipal
Health and Wellbeing Plan: Well Placed for
Wellbeing

Mental Health
Deliver three mental health first aid training
sessions to 60 employees

Health Service Deliverables

Bairnsdale Regional Health Service Statement of Priorities outcomes for 2018/19 are provided below:

Strategic priorities

Statement of Priorities Part A

New Employee Assist Provider has delivered
increased online staff resources regarding mental
health and wellbeing.
3 “Blokes Breakfasts” were held during the year for
male staff. These had a variety of guest speakers
including topics: Anxiety and Depression.
Subscription to Health Works Newsletter – monthly
publication distributed online and in hard copy to
all staff areas includes education articles on mental
health and wellness programs.
First aid mental health training continues to be
offered within the region. Sessions for BRHS are
confirmed for June 19-Dec 19. (Not achieved)
BRHS is an active member of the Primary Care
Partnership activities and events. BRHS supports an
active Positive Health and Wellbeing (PHEW)
committee which leads well-being activities and

Outcome

The Statement of Priorities (SoP) is the formal funding and monitoring agreement between Victorian sub-regional and local health services and the Secretary
for Health, and is in accordance with section 26 of the Health Services Act 1988 (Vic). The annual agreement facilitates delivery of or substantial progress
towards the key shared objectives of financial viability, improved access and quality of service provision.

STATEMENT OF PRIORITIES
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Strategies

Help people to stay healthy

Target health gaps

Plan and invest

Our Goal

Illness is detected and
managed early

Healthy neighbourhoods
and communities
encourage healthy lifestyles

Care is always there when
people need it

Establish a rehabilitation at home model of
care and service.

Reducing harmful alcohol and drug use.
BRHS will review the referral pathway into the
alcohol and other drug inpatient beds to ensure
access and strong connections with community
programs. To be completed by December 2018

Preventing Violence and Injury
100% of staff the Emergency Department and
the Maternity Services will have access to
training to build staff knowledge and skills in
identifying and responding to family violence.

Health Service Deliverables

events for staff. An annual action plan is developed
and implemented.
An MOU has been developed with the East
Gippsland Shire Council Bairnsdale Aquatic and
Recreation Centre to enable Allied Health
participation in the hospital to recreation centre
programs initiative. (Achieved)
A small number of staff have received training
however some delays were experienced due to
changes in the project management role. All
policies and procedures have been reviewed to
ensure our service has a contemporary and
proactive response to family violence for both staff
and patients. (Not achieved)
The BRHS multi-disciplinary Alcohol & Other Drugs
(AOD) monthly working group was established to
support the service programs and staff working in
the field. A BRHS led, community based peer
support Self Management and Recovery Training
(SMART) recovery program has been established
and attendance is growing, this improves access to
services. Aspex Consulting have been engaged and
completed a review on the likely impact of the Hope
Restart Centre for BRHS. This will enhance our
ability to plan for the future. (Achieved)
Data collection occurred to determine an
appropriate scope and service model. This has
been drafted for consideration. Further work is
progressing with the intent of trial next year. (Not
achieved)

Outcome
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Join up care

Partner with patients

Healthcare that focusses on
outcomes

Patients and carers are
active partners in care

Disability Action Plans

Draft disability action plans are
completed in 2018-19.

Specific 2018-19 priorities (mandatory)

Put Quality First

Strategies

Target zero avoidable harm

Better Care

Our Goal

Submit a draft disability action plan to the
department by 30 June 2019. The draft plan
needs to outline the approach to full
implementation within three years of
publication.

Provide staff training in ‘Your Thoughts
Matter’

Implement a nursing program; the EPIC
(Engaging Patients in Care) nurse. This will
include the introduction of asking patients what
matters to them by June 30 2019.

Establish
a
‘faculty’
(25
people)
of
Communication
and
Partnering
with
Consumers. These staff will be skilled to enact a
‘train the trainer’ model of education in
communicating and partnering with consumers.

Health Service Deliverables

BRHS has developed a disability action plan. The
plan provides direction for the organisations
approach over the next 3 years. (Achieved)

199 staff have attended ‘Your Thoughts Matter’
training. This training ensures staff have enhanced
communication skills to partner with consumers in
their care. (Achieved)

Faculty members have received core training and
continue to be mentored. 199 individual staff have
attended training to date. This ‘Your Thoughts
Matter’ training enhances staff’s ability to
communicate and therefore partner with
consumers in their care. BRHS has received an
increase in compliments about the care experience
to date. (Achieved)
The EPIC nurse project has been implemented and
work continues to ensure it is embedded in
everyday practice. Patients are reporting that their
prime concerns are being addressed which is
supporting their care experience. (Achieved)

Outcome
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Strategies

Ensure that the health service
executives have appropriate
measures to engage and
recognise volunteers.

Actively
promote
positive
workplace behaviours and
encourage reporting. Utilise
staff surveys, incident reporting
data,
outcomes
of
investigations and claims to

Our Goal

Volunteer Engagement

Bullying and Harassment

Review Board reporting to ensure the Board
receive a suite of key performance indicators
that provide line of sight to bullying and
harassment claims and any relevant mitigation
activities. Report to be provided every 6 months.

The CEO and Board receive monthly reports
demonstrating indicators and industrial issues
raised and investigated. Board rounding has been
introduced, including checking with staff if they feel
safe in the workplace. Contact officers have been
trained. (Achieved)

Volunteers Week was held from the 20th to 26th May
2019 and a morning tea was held at the local Bowls
Club. Other communications featuring Volunteers
and promoting the value of Volunteers have been
circulated in social and print media. (Achieved)

Celebrate Volunteers Week.

Review policies and procedures to ensure
volunteers are appropriately supported and
engaged across BRHS.

A strategic plan was not completed due to a shift
of this area to a new Director. However, a review
of key events includes Volunteer Week celebrated
with afternoon tea, the Volunteers Christmas
Lunch, both of which are annual BRHS events. 16
Interviews have been conducted with Directors
and Managers on current deployment and
opportunities for volunteers. Position Descriptions
of the Volunteer Coordinator and Patient Liaison
Officer have been reviewed and key responsibility
areas clarified. This work forms a great basis to
inform the forthcoming strategic plan. (Not
achieved)
Volunteer Policies and Documentation review was
undertaken, changes and improvements continue
to be made. (Achieved)

Outcome

Develop a three year strategic plan that leads
our work and engagement with volunteers at
BRHS.

Health Service Deliverables
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Occupational Violence

Our Goal

Actively
promote
positive
workplace behaviours and
encourage reporting. Utilise
staff surveys, incident reporting
data,
outcomes
of
investigations and claims to
regularly monitor and identify
risks related to bullying and
harassment,
in
particular
include as a regular item in
Board and Executive meetings.
Appropriately investigate all
reports
of
bullying
and
harassment and ensure there is
a feedback mechanism to staff
involved and the broader
health service staff.

regularly monitor and identify
risks related to bullying and
harassment,
in
particular
include as a regular item in
Board and Executive meetings.
Appropriately investigate all
reports
of
bullying
and
harassment and ensure there is
a feedback mechanism to staff
involved and the broader
health service staff.

Strategies

Review the current staff training and implement
a new training package by June 2019. All staff
who provide direct care, security staff, code
responders, and staff who provide front of
house reception services, will undertake
occupational violence training. All new staff will
receive initial training as part of the
organisational orientation program.

Health Service Deliverables

Policies and procedures have been reviewed to
ensure clarity on escalation of concerns for staff if
necessary. Data relative to occupational violence is
reviewed monthly at Executive Governance and
Board meetings. Feedback is provided to staff
regarding the process while ensuring confidentiality
is maintained. Contact officers have been identified
and trained, this provides staff with an independent
person who they may approach for support.
(Partially achieved)

Outcome
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Strategies

Actively contribute to the
development of the Victorian
Government’s policy to be net
zero emissions by 2050 and
improve
environmental
sustainability by identifying and
implementing
projects,
including workforce education,
to
reduce
environmental
material
with
particular
consideration of procurement
and waste management, and
impacts with publicly reporting
environmental
performance
data, including measureable
targets related to reduction of
clinical, sharps and landfill
waste, water and energy use
and improved recycling.

Our Goal

Environmental
Sustainability

Install solar panels on the acute site and the
Maddocks Garden site by June 2019. This will
result in decreased power costs in the longer
term and contribute to improved environmental
sustainability.

Health Service Deliverables

Environmental issues and action continues to be a
high priority across the Health Service with the 222
x 80 Kwh Solar Panel Installation Project completed
in Aged Care – Maddocks Garden, in May 2019 and
the 1,944 x 700 Kwh Solar Panel Installation on the
Acute campus due for completion at the end of July
2019. (Achieved)

Outcome
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Strategies

Develop
and
promulgate
service level policies and
protocols, in partnership with
LGBTI communities, to avoid
discrimination against LGBTI
patients, ensure appropriate
data collection, and actively
promote
rights
to
free
expression of gender and
sexuality in healthcare settings.
Where relevant, services should
offer
leading
practice
approaches to trans and
intersex related interventions.

Our Goal

LGBTI

The health service has participated in the GLHV
HOW2 program as a means of working toward
the Rainbow Tick accreditation program for
LGBTI inclusive health service practice.

Health Service Deliverables

Rainbow Tick training has been completed by lead
staff. The process for accreditation is more resource;
(human and finance) intense than first understood.
A high level review post the training has highlighted
significant work required to achieve accreditation.
A full and detailed gap analysis against the 6
standards is underway. BRHS will continue to work
towards being Rainbow friendly accredited in the
future. (Achieved)

Outcome

Statement of Priorities Part B
High quality and safe care
Key performance indicator

Target

2018/19
Actual

Accreditation
Accreditation against the National Safety
and Quality Health Service Standards

Accredited

Achieved

Compliance with the Commonwealth’s Aged
Care Accreditation Standards

Accredited

Achieved

Compliance with the Hand Hygiene Australia
program

80%

83%

Percentage of healthcare workers
immunised for influenza April 2018 to
August 2018

80%

82%

Full Compliance

Full Compliance

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey –
percentage of positive patient experience
responses (Quarter 1 data for 2018/19 from the
Victorian Health Service Performance Monitor
Report)

95%

89.6%

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey –
percentage of positive patient experience
responses (Quarter 2 data for 2018/19 from the
Victorian Health Service Performance Monitor
Report)

95%

88%

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey –
percentage of positive patient experience
responses (Quarter 3 data for 2018/19 from the
Victorian Health Service Performance Monitor
Report)

95%

90.4%

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey –
percentage of very positive responses to
questions on discharge care (Quarter 1 data for
2018/19 from the Victorian Health Service
Performance Monitor Report)

75%

78.6%

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey –
percentage of very positive responses to
questions on discharge care (Quarter 2 data for
2018/19 from the Victorian Health Service
Performance Monitor Report)

75%

77.7%

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey –
percentage of very positive responses to
questions on discharge care (Quarter 3 data for
2018/19 from the Victorian Health Service
Performance Monitor Report)

75%

76.8%

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey –
patients perception of cleanliness (Quarter 1
data for 2018/19 from the Victorian Health
Service Performance Monitor Report)

70%

78.8%

Infection prevention and control

Patient experience
Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey – data
submission

BAIRNSDALE REGIONAL HEALTH SERVICE 2018/2019

Page 35

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey –
patients perception of cleanliness (Quarter 2
data for 2018/19 from the Victorian Health
Service Performance Monitor Report)

70%

81.4%

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey –
patients perception of cleanliness (Quarter 3
data for 2018/19 from the Victorian Health
Service Performance Monitor Report)

70%

73.8%

All RCA reports submitted
within 30 business days

0

Rate of singleton term infants without birth
anomalies with APGAR score
<7 to 5 minutes (Quarter 3 data for 2018/19
from the Victorian Health Service Performance
Monitor Report)

≤ 1.4%

1.1%

Rate of severe foetal growth restriction (FGR) in
singleton pregnancy undelivered by 40 weeks
(Quarter 3 data for 2018/19 from the Victorian
Health Service Performance Monitor Report)

≤ 28.6%

20%

≥ 0.645

1.042

Adverse events
Sentinel events – root cause analysis (RCA)
reporting

Maternity and newborn

Continuing care
Functional independence gain from an episode of
rehabilitation admission to discharge relative to
length of stay (Quarter 3 data for 2018/19 from
the Victorian Health Service Performance Monitor
Report)

Strong governance, leadership and culture
Key performance indicator

2018/19
Target

Actual

80%

89%

80%

96%

80%

92%

80%

92%

80%

84%

Organisational culture
People matter survey - percentage of staff with an overall positive
response to safety and culture questions responses (Quarter 1 data
for 2018/19 from the Victorian Health Service Performance Monitor
Report)
People matter survey – percentage of staff with a positive response to
the question, “I am encouraged by my colleagues to report any
patient safety concerns I may have” (Quarter 1 data for 2018/19 from
the Victorian Health Service Performance Monitor Report)
People matter survey – percentage of staff with a positive response to
the question, “Patient care errors are handled appropriately in my
work area” (Quarter 1 data for 2018/19 from the Victorian Health
Service Performance Monitor Report)
People matter survey – percentage of staff with a positive response to
the question, “My suggestions about patient safety would be acted
upon if I expressed them to my manager” (Quarter 1 data for 2018/19
from the Victorian Health Service Performance Monitor Report)
People matter survey – percentage of staff with a positive response to
the question, “The culture in my work area makes it easy to learn from
the errors of others” (Quarter 1 data for 2018/19 from the Victorian
Health Service Performance Monitor Report)
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People matter survey – percentage of staff with a positive response to
the question, “Management is driving us to be a safety-centred
organisation” (Quarter 1 data for 2018/19 from the Victorian Health
Service Performance Monitor Report)
People matter survey – percentage of staff with a positive response to
the question, “This health service does a good job of training new and
existing staff” (Quarter 1 data for 2018/19 from the Victorian Health
Service Performance Monitor Report)
People matter survey – percentage of staff with a positive response to
the question, “Trainees in my discipline are adequately supervised”
(Quarter 1 data for 2018/19 from the Victorian Health Service
Performance Monitor Report)
People matter survey – percentage of staff with a positive response to
the question, “I would recommend a friend or relative to be treated as
a patient here” (Quarter 1 data for 2018/19 from the Victorian Health
Service Performance Monitor Report)

80%

94%

80%

81%

80%

83%

80%

87%

Timely access to care
Key performance indicator

2018/19
Target

Actual

90%

92%

100%

100%

Percentage of Triage Category 1 to 5 emergency patients seen within
clinically recommended time

80%

82%

Percentage of emergency patients with a length of stay in the
emergency department of less than four hours

81%

82%

0

1

Percentage of urgent patients referred by a GP or external specialist
who attended a first appointment within 30 days

100%

88%

Percentage of routine patients referred by GP or external specialist
who attended a first appointment within 365 days

90%

100%

Target

2018/19 Actual

0.00

0.61

Average number of days to paying trade creditors

60 days

42 days

Average number of days to receiving patient fee debtors

60 days

28 days

100%

94%

0.7 or 3%
improvement from

1.11

Emergency care
Percentage of patients transferred from ambulance to emergency
department within 40 minutes
Percentage of Triage Category 1 emergency patients seen
immediately

Number of patients with a length of stay in the emergency
department greater than 24 hours

Specialist Clinics

Effective financial management
Key performance indicator
Finance
Operating result ($m)

Public and Private WIES1 activity performance to target
Adjusted current asset ratio

1

WIES is a Weighted Inlier Equivalent Separation

BAIRNSDALE REGIONAL HEALTH SERVICE 2018/2019

Page 37

health service base
target
Forecast number of days a health service can maintain its operations
with unrestricted available cash (based on end of year forecast)

14 days

56

Actual number of days a health service can maintain its operations
with unrestricted available cash, measured on the last day of each
month.

14 days

Achieved

Variance ≤ $250,000

Achieved

Measures the accuracy of forecasting the Net result from transactions
(NRFT) for the current financial year ending 30 June.

Statement of Priorities Part C
Funding type

2018/19
Activity
Achievement

Acute Admitted
WIES Public

6,596

WIES Private

911

WIES DVA

197

WIES TAC

24

Acute Non-Admitted
Home Enteral Nutrition
Specialist Clinics

79
10,752

Subacute and Non-Acute Admitted
Subacute WIES - Rehabilitation Public

177

Subacute WIES - Rehabilitation Private

45

Subacute WIES - GEM Public

102

Subacute WIES - GEM Private

21

Subacute WIES - Palliative Care Public

31

Subacute WIES - Palliative Care Private

7

Subacute WIES - DVA

15

Subacute Non-Admitted
Health Independence Program - Public

24,292

Aged Care
Residential Aged Care

32,286

HACC
Primary Health

18,346

Community Health / Primary Care Programs

1,576

Other
Health Workforce

31

The data relating to delivered activity published in the Report of Operations may not be final as it was
prepared before the final consolidation.
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Occupational Violence
Health services are required to monitor and publicly report incidents of occupational violence which follows
the Victorian Government’s commitment to address occupational violence in healthcare.
BRHS Occupational Violence Statistics
1. WorkCover accepted claims with an occupational
violence cause per 100 FTE
2. Number of accepted WorkCover claims with lost time
injury with an occupational violence cause per 1,000,000
hours worked.
3. Number of occupational violence incidents reported
4. Number of occupational violence incidents reported per
100 FTE
5. Percentage of occupational violence incidents resulting in
a staff injury, illness or condition

2018/19
0.36

0.0015
66
8.45
13.64%

Definitions
For the purposes of the above statistics the following definitions apply.
Occupational violence - any incident where an employee is abused, threatened or assaulted in circumstances
arising out of, or in the course of, their employment. (Worksafe Guide for Employers: Preventing and
Responding to Work-related Violence.)
Incident –an event or circumstance that could have resulted in, or did result in, harm to an employee. Incidents
of all severity rating must be included. Code Grey reporting is not included, however, if an incident occurs
during the course of a planned or unplanned Code Grey, the incident must be included.
Accepted WorkCover claims – Accepted WorkCover claims that were lodged in 2018/19.
Lost time – is defined as greater than one day.
Injury, illness or condition – This includes all reported harm as a result of the incident, regardless of whether
the employee required time off work or submitted a claim.
FTE figures required in the above table are calculated consistent with the Workforce information FTE
calculation.
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COMPLIANCE WITH HEALTH PURCHASING VICTORIA (HPV) HEALTH PURCHASING POLICIES
I, Robyn Hayles, certify that Bairnsdale Regional Health Service has put in place appropriate internal controls
and processes to ensure that it has complied with all requirements as set out in the HPV Health Purchasing
Policies including mandatory HPV collective agreements as required by the Health Services Act 1988 (Vic)
and has critically reviewed these controls and processes during this year.

Robyn Hayles
Chief Executive Officer
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service
21st August 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Board of Bairnsdale Regional Health Service
Opinion

I have audited the financial report of Bairnsdale Regional Health Service (the health service)
which comprises the:
•
•
•
•
•
•

balance sheet as at 30 June 2019
comprehensive operating statement for the year then ended
statement of changes in equity for the year then ended
cash flow statement for the year then ended
notes to the financial statements, including significant accounting policies
board member's, accountable officer's and chief finance & accounting officer's
declaration.

In my opinion the financial report presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the health service as at 30 June 2019 and their financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with the financial reporting requirements of Part
7 of the Financial Management Act 1994 and applicable Australian Accounting Standards.
Basis for
Opinion

I have conducted my audit in accordance with the Audit Act 1994 which incorporates the
Australian Auditing Standards. I further describe my responsibilities under that Act and those
standards in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of my
report.
My independence is established by the Constitution Act 1975. My staff and I are independent
of the health service in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting
Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in Victoria. My
staff and I have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion.

Board’s
responsibilities
for the
financial
report

The Board of the health service is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Financial
Management Act 1994, and for such internal control as the Board determines is necessary to
enable the preparation and fair presentation of a financial report that is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial report, the Board is responsible for assessing the health service’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless it is inappropriate to do so.
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Auditor’s
responsibilities
for the audit
of the financial
report

As required by the Audit Act 1994, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial
report based on the audit. My objectives for the audit are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.
As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, I exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. I also:
•

•

•
•

•

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the health service’s internal control
evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board
conclude on the appropriateness of the Board’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the health
service’s ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the health service to cease to
continue as a going concern.
evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

I communicate with the Board regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that I identify during my audit.

MELBOURNE
23 August 2019
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Bairnsdale Regional Health Service
Comprehensive Operating Statement
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2019
Note

2019
$'000

2018
$'000

Income from Transactions
Operating activities
Non-operating activities
Total Income from Transactions

2.1
2.1

97,550
561
98,110

92,580
604
93,184

Expenses from Transactions
Employee expenses
Supplies & consumables
Finance costs
Depreciation
Other operating expenses
Total Expenses from Transactions

3.1
3.1
3.1
4.3
3.1

(67,326)
(19,034)
(75)
(4,330)
(9,984)
(100,749)

(63,353)
(17,882)
(31)
(4,237)
(9,846)
(95,349)

(2,638)

(2,165)

(21)
(170)
(191)

(39)
(27)
(66)

(2,830)

(2,231)

Net Result From transactions - Net Operating Balance
Other Economic Flows Included in Net Result
Net loss on sale of non-financial assets
Other losses from other economic flows
Total Other Economic Flows Included in Net Result

3.2
3.2

NET RESULT FOR THE YEAR
Other Comprehensive Income
Items That Will Not Be Reclassified to Net Result
Changes in property, plant and equipment revaluation surplus

4.2b

Total Other Comprehensive Income
COMPREHENSIVE RESULT

11,756

546

11,756

546

8,927

(1,685)

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Bairnsdale Regional Health Service
Balance Sheet
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2019
Note
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Inventories
Other assets
Total Current Assets
Non-Current Assets
Receivables
Property, plant & equipment
Total Non-Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS
Current Liabilities
Payables
Borrowings
Provisions
Other liabilities
Total Current Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Borrowings
Provisions
Total Non-Current Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

2018
$'000

6.2
5.1

26,687
2,128
504
589
29,908

27,142
1,902
428
495
29,967

5.1
4.2b

1,423
57,408
58,831
88,739

1,200
46,191
47,392
77,359

5.2
6.1
3.4
5.3

7,037
325
10,799
11,231
29,392

5,533
272
10,372
10,991
27,169

6.1
3.4

1,089
2,762
3,851
33,243
55,496

1,369
2,252
3,621
30,790
46,569

4.2f

36,521
841
21,394
(3,260)
55,496

24,764
1,599
21,394
(1,188)
46,569

NET ASSETS
Equity
Property, plant & equipment revaluation surplus
Restricted specific purpose surplus
Contributed capital
Accumulated (deficits)/surpluses
TOTAL EQUITY

2019
$'000

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Bairnsdale Regional Health Service
Statement of Changes in Equity

11,756
36,521

Net result for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year
Transfer from/(to) accumulated surplus

Balance at 30 June 2019

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

24,764

546
-

24,218

$'000

$'000

841

(757)

1,599

(684)

2,283

21,394

-

21,394

-

21,394

$'000

Property, Plant &
Restricted
Contributions by
Equipment
Specific Purpose
Owners
Revaluation
Surplus
Surplus

Balance at 30 June 2018

Net result for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year
Transfer from/(to) accumulated surplus

Balance at 1 July 2017

For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2019
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360

(3,260)

(2,830)
757

(1,188)

(2,231)
684

$'000

Accumulated
Surpluses/
(Deficits)

55,496

(2,830)
11,756
-

46,569

(2,231)
546
-

48,254

$'000

Total

Bairnsdale Regional Health Service
Cash Flow Statement
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2019
Note
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating grants from government
Capital grants from government
Patient and resident fees received
Donations and bequests received
GST received from/(paid to) ATO
Interest received
Capital donations and bequests received
Other receipts
Total Receipts
Employee expenses paid
Payments for supplies and consumables
Payments for medical indemnity insurance
Payments for repairs and maintenance
Finance costs
Payment for share of Gippsland Health Alliance
Other payments
Total Payments
NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

8.1

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for non-financial assets
Proceeds from sale of non-financial assets
NET CASH FLOW USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of borrowings
Proceeds of borrowings
Receipt of accommodation deposits
Repayment of accommodation deposits
Change in Patient Trust
NET CASH FLOW FROM/(USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HELD
6.2

2018
$'000

81,335
883
11,419
165
(73)
561
270
3,984
98,545

76,318
964
10,858
254
(57)
669
810
4,017
93,832

(66,395)
(17,918)
(1,160)
(508)
(75)
(2,366)
(6,780)
(95,201)

(61,764)
(16,777)
(1,156)
(412)
(31)
(2,366)
(4,885)
(87,391)

3,344

6,441

(3,972)
160
(3,812)

(4,205)
146
(4,059)

(227)
5,142
(4,729)
(173)
13

(63)
1,101
2,474
(3,133)
(22)
357

(455)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

2019
$'000

27,142
26,687

2,739
24,403
27,142

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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Basis of Preparation
These financial statements are in Australian dollars and the historical cost convention is used
unless a different measurement basis is specifically disclosed in the note associated with the
item measured on a different basis.
The accrual basis of accounting has been applied in the preparation of these financial
statements whereby assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses are recognised in the
reporting period to which they relate, regardless of when cash is received or paid.
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Note 1.1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
These annual financial statements represent the audited general purpose financial statements
for Bairnsdale Regional Health Service for the year ended 30 June 2019. The report provides
users with information about Bairnsdale Regional Health Service’s stewardship of resources
entrusted to it.
(a) Statement of compliance
These financial statements are general purpose financial statements which have been
prepared in accordance with the Financial Management Act 1994 and applicable AASBs,
which include interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB).
They are presented in a manner consistent with the requirements of AASB 101 Presentation of
Financial Statements .
The financial statements also comply with relevant Financial Reporting Directions (FRDs) issued
by the Department of Treasury and Finance, and relevant Standing Directions (SDs) authorised
by the Assistant Treasurer.
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service is a not-for-profit entity and therefore applies the additional
AUS paragraphs applicable to "not-for-profit" Health Services under the AASBs.
(b) Reporting entity
The financial statements include all the controlled activities of Bairnsdale Regional Health
Service.
Its principal address is:
122 Day Street
Bairnsdale
Victoria 3875
A description of the nature of Bairnsdale Regional Health Service’s operations and its principal
activities is included in the report of operations, which does not form part of these financial
statements.
(c) Basis of accounting preparation and measurement
Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner which ensures that the resulting
financial information satisfies the concepts of relevance and reliability, thereby ensuring that
the substance of the underlying transactions or other events is reported.
The accounting policies have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2019, and the comparative information presented in these financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2018.
The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis (Refer to Note 8.9 Economic
Dependency).
These financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, the functional and presentation
currency of Bairnsdale Regional Health Service.
All amounts shown in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest thousand
dollars, unless otherwise stated. Minor discrepancies in tables between totals and sum of
components are due to rounding.

BAIRNSDALE REGIONAL HEALTH SERVICE 2018/2019

Page 49

1

Bairnsdale Regional Health Service
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2019

Note 1.1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service operates on a fund accounting basis and maintains three
funds: Operating, Specific Purpose and Capital Funds. Bairnsdale Regional Health Service's
Capital and Specific Purpose Funds include unspent donations and receipts from fund-raising
activities conducted solely in respect of these funds.
The financial statements, except for cash flow information, have been prepared using the
accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis, items are recognised as assets, liabilities,
equity, income or expenses when they satisfy the definitions and recognition criteria for those
items, that is, they are recognised in the reporting period to which they relate, regardless of
when cash is received or paid.
Judgements, estimates and assumptions are required to be made about the carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on professional judgements derived from historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
and also in future periods that are affected by the revision. Judgements and assumptions
made by management in the application of AASBs that have significant effects on the
financial statements and estimates relate to:
● The fair value of land, buildings and plant and equipment (refer to Note 4.2 Property, Plant
and Equipment);
● Employee benefit provisions are based on likely tenure of existing staff, patterns of leave
claims, future salary movements and future discount rates (refer to Note 3.4 Employee Benefits
in the Balance Sheet).
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Note 1.1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Goods and services tax (GST)
Income, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the
GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO). In this case the GST
payable is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense.
Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable.
The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included with other
receivables or payables in the Balance Sheet.
Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from
investing or financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to the ATO, are
presented as operating cash flow.
Commitments and contingent assets and liabilities are presented on a gross basis.
(d) Jointly controlled operation
Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control.
In respect of any interest in joint operations, Bairnsdale Regional Health Service recognises in
the financial statements:
• its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly;
• any liabilities including its share of liabilities that it has incurred;
• its revenue from the sale of its share of the output from the joint operation;
• its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the operation; and
• its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly.
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service is a Member of the Gippsland Health Alliance and retains
joint control over the arrangement, which it has classified as a joint operation (refer to Note 8.8
Jointly Controlled Operations).
(e) Principles of consolidation
Intersegment transactions
Transactions between segments within Bairnsdale Regional Health Service have been
eliminated to reflect the extent of Bairnsdale Regional Health Service's operations as a group.
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Note 1.1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(f) Equity
Contributed Capital
Consistent with the requirements of AASB 1004 Contributions, contributions by owners (that is,
contributed capital and its repayment) are treated as equity transactions and,therefore, do
not form part of the income and expenses of the Bairnsdale Regional Health Service.
Transfers of net assets arising from administrative restructurings are treated as distributions to or
contributions by owners. Transfers of net liabilities arising from administrative restructurings are
treated as distributions to owners.
Other transfers that are in the nature of contributions or distributions or that have been
designated as contributed capital are also treated as contributed capital.
Specific Restricted Purpose Surplus
The Specific Restricted Purpose Surplus is established where Bairnsdale Regional Health Service
has possession or title to the funds but has no discretion to amend or vary the restriction and/or
condition underlying the funds received.
(g) Comparatives
Where applicable, the comparative figures have been restated to align with the presentation
in the current year. Figures have been restated at Note 2.1 and Note 3.1.
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Note 2: Funding Delivery of Our Services

Bairnsdale Regional Health Service’s overall objective is to provide quality health services that meet
the needs of the East Gippsland community by providing accessible, high quality and sustainable
health care. Bairnsdale Regional Health Service is predominantly funded by accrual based grant
funding for the provision of outputs. The hospital also receives income from the supply of services.

Structure
2.1 Income from Transactions
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Note 2.1: Income from Transactions
Total
2019
$'000
Government grants - operating
Government grants - capital
Capital purpose income (including capital donation)
Patient and resident fees
Commercial activities *
Other revenue from operating activities
Total Revenue from Operating Activities
Interest
Total Income from Non-Operating Activities
Total Income from Transactions

Total
2018
$'000

80,596
883
270
5,871
6,617
3,311
97,550

75,728
964
875
5,693
6,213
3,107
92,580

561
561

604
604

98,110

93,184

* Commercial activities represent business activities which health service enter into to support
their operations.
Revenue recognition
Income is recognised in accordance with AASB 118 Revenue and is recognised to the extent that
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to Bairnsdale Regional Health Service and the
income can be reliably measured at fair value. Unearned income at reporting date is reported as
income received in advance.
Amounts disclosed as revenue are, where applicable, net of returns, allowances and duties and
taxes.
Government grants and other transfers of income (other than contributions by owners)
In accordance with AASB 1004 Contributions, government grants and other transfers of income
(other than contributions by owners) are recognised as income when Bairnsdale Regional Health
Service gains control of the underlying assets irrespective of whether conditions are imposed on
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service’s use of the contributions.
The Department of Health and Human Services makes certain payments on behalf of Bairnsdale
Regional Health Service. These amounts have been brought to account as grants in determining
the operating result for the year by recording them as revenue.
Contributions are deferred as income in advance when Bairnsdale Regional Health Service has a
present obligation to repay them and the present obligation can be reliably measured.
Non-cash contributions from the Department of Health and Human Services
The Department of Health and Human Services makes some payments on behalf of health
services as follows:
• The Victorian Managed Insurance Authority non-medical indemnity insurance payments are
recognised as revenue following advice from the Department of Health and Human Services;
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Note 2.1: Income from Transactions (continued)
Non-cash contributions from the Department of Health and Human Services
• Long Service Leave (LSL) revenue is recognised upon finalisation of movements in LSL liability in line
with the long service leave funding arrangements set out in the relevant Department of Health and
Human Services Hospital Circular;
• Public Private Partnership (PPP) lease and service payments are paid directly to the PPP consortium.
Revenue and the matching expense are recognised in accordance with the nature and timing of the
monthly or quarterly service payments made by the Department of Health and Human Services.
Patient fees
Patient fees are recognised as revenue at the time invoices are raised.
Private practice Fees
Private practice fees are recognised as revenue at the time invoices are raised.
Revenue from commercial activities
Revenue from commercial activities such as diagnostic imaging is recognised at the time invoices are
raised.
Interest revenue
Interest revenue is recognised on a time proportionate basis that takes into account the effective yield
of the financial asset, which allocates interest over the relevant period.
Other income
Other income is recognised as revenue when received. Other income includes recoveries for salaries
and wages and external services provided, donations, bequests, non-property rental, forgiveness of
liabilities and bad debt reversals. If donations are for a special purpose, they may be appropriated to
a surplus, such as the specific restricted purpose surplus.
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Note 3: The Cost of Delivery of Our Services

This section provides an account of the expenses incurred by Bairnsdale Regional Health Service in
delivering services and outputs. In Note 2, the funds that enable the provision of services were
disclosed and in this note the cost associated with provision of services are recorded.
Structure
3.1 Expenses from Transactions
3.2 Other Economic Flows
3.3 Analysis of Expense and Revenue by Internally Managed and Restricted Specific Purpose Funds
3.4 Employee Benefits in the Balance Sheet
3.5 Superannuation
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Note 3.1: Expenses from Transactions
Total
2019
$'000

Total
2018
$'000

Salaries and wages
On-costs
Agency expenses
Fee for service medical officer expenses
Workcover premium
Total Employee Expenses

52,684
4,560
4,567
4,229
1,286
67,326

49,616
4,322
4,397
4,052
966
63,353

Drug supplies
Medical and surgical supplies (including prostheses)
Diagnostic and radiology supplies
Other supplies and consumables
Total Supplies and Comsumables

5,593
3,402
3,863
6,176
19,034

4,901
3,415
3,685
5,881
17,882

75

31

Fuel, light, power and water
Repair and maintenance
Maintenance contracts
Medical indemnity insurance
Other administration expenses
Expenditure for capital purposes
Total Other Operating Expenses

1,041
508
620
1,160
6,382
274
9,984

1,063
412
557
1,156
6,326
332
9,846

Depreciation (refer note 4.3)

4,330

4,237

Total Other Non-Operating Expenses

4,330

4,237

100,749

95,349

Finance costs

Total Expenses from Transactions

Expenses are recognised as they are incurred and reported in the financial year to which they
relate.
Employee expenses
Employee expenses include:
● Salaries and wages (including fringe benefits tax, leave entitlements and termination
payments)
● On-costs;
● Agency expenses;
● Fee for service medical officer expenses;
● Work cover premiums.
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Note 3.1: Expenses from Transactions (continued)
Supplies and consumables
Supplies and consumables - Supplies and services costs which are recognised as an expense in the reporting
period in which they are incurred. The carrying amounts of any inventories held for distribution are expensed
when distributed.
Finance costs
Finance costs include:
● Interest on bank overdrafts and short-term and long-term borrowings (Interest expense is recognised in the
period in which it is incurred);
● Amortisation of discounts or premiums relating to borrowings;
● Amortisation of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings; and
● Finance charges in respect of finance leases which are recognised in accordance with AASB117 Leases.
Other operating expenses
Other operating expenses generally represent the day-to-day running costs incurred in normal operations and
include:
● Fuel, light and power;
● Repair and maintenance;
● Other administrative expenses;
● Expenditure for capital purposes (represents expenditure related to the purchase of assets that are below
the capitalisation threshold).
The Department of Health and Human Services also makes certain payments on behalf of Bairnsdale
Regional Health Service. These amounts have been brought to account as grants in determining the
operating result for the year by recording them as revenue and also recording the related expense.
Non-operating expenses
Other non-operating expenses generally represent expenditure for outside the normal operations such as
depreciation and amortisation, and assets and services provided free of charge or for nominal consideration.
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Note 3.2: Other Economic Flows
2019
$'000
Net Gain/(Loss) on Sale of Non-Financial Assets
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Total Net Gain/(Loss) on Sale of Non-Financial Assets

2018
$'000

(21)
(21)

(39)
(39)

Other Gain/(Losses) from Other Economic Flows
Doubtful debts
Net gain/(loss) arising from revaluation of long service liability
Total Other Gain/(Losses) from Other Economic Flows

(1)
(169)

(8)
(19)

Total Other Gain/(Loss) from Economic Flows

(170)

(27)

Other economic flows are changes in the volume or value of an asset or liability that do not result
from transactions. Other gains/(losses) from other economic flows include the gains or losses from:
● the revaluation of the present value of the long service leave liability due to changes in the bond
interest rates; and
● Reclassified amounts relating to available-for-sale financial instruments from the reserves to net
result due to a disposal or derecognition of the financial instrument. This does not include
reclassification between equity accounts due to machinery of government changes or ‘other
transfers’ of assets.
Net gain/ (loss) on non-financial assets
Net gain/(loss) on non-financial assets and liabilities includes realised and unrealised gains and losses
as follows:
● Revaluation gains/(losses) of non-financial physical assets (Refer to Note 4.2 Property, plant and
equipment).
● Net gains/(losses) on disposal of non-financial assets.
● Any gain or loss on the disposal of non-financial assets is recognised at the date of disposal.
Other gains/(losses) from other economic flows
● The revaluation of the present value of the long service leave liability due to changes in the bond
rate movements, inflation rate movements and the impact of changes in probability factors; and
● The transfer of amounts from the reserves to accumulated surplus or net result due to disposal or
derecognition or reclassification.
Inventories
Inventories include goods and other property held either for sale, consumption or for distribution at
no or nominal cost in the ordinary course of business operations. It excludes depreciable assets.
Inventories held for distribution are measured at cost, adjusted for any loss of service potential. All
other inventories, including land held for sale, are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.
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Note 3.2: Other Economic Flows (continued)
Inventories (continued)
Inventories acquired for no cost or nominal considerations are measured at current replacement
cost at the date of acquisition.
The basis used in assessing loss of service potential for inventories held for distribution include current
replacement cost and technical or functional obsolescence. Technical obsolescence occurs when
an item still functions for some or all the tasks it was originally acquired to do, but no longer matches
existing technologies. Functional obsolescence occurs when an item no longer functions the way it
did when it was first acquired.

Note 3.3: Analysis of Expense and Revenue by Internally Managed and
Restricted Specific Purpose Funds
Expense
2019
2018
$'000
$'000
Commercial Activities
Diagnostic imaging
Cafeteria
Central business district campus
Donations SPFI
Private consulting suites
Total Commercial Activities
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5,677
179
260
26
317
6,458

5,449
284
236
54
355
6,378

Revenue
2019
2018
$'000
$'000
6,268
191
43
14
101
6,617

5,862
188
26
25
112
6,213
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Note 3.4: Employee Benefits in the Balance Sheet
2019
$'000
Current Provisions
Employee benefits (i)
Accrued days off
- Unconditional and expected to be settled wholly within 12 months (ii)
Annual leave
- Unconditional and expected to be settled wholly within 12 months (ii)
- Unconditional and expected to be settled wholly after 12 months (iii)
Long service leave
- Unconditional and expected to be settled wholly within 12 months (ii)
- Unconditional and expected to be settled wholly after 12 months (iii)
Provisions related to employee benefit on-costs
- Unconditional and expected to be settled within 12 months (ii)
- Unconditional and expected to be settled after 12 months (iii)
Total Current Provisions
Non-Current Provisions
Conditional long service leave
Provisions related to employee benefit on-costs
Total Non-Current Provisions
Total Provisions

2018
$'000

92

103

3,785
632

3,508
594

927
4,322

711
4,457

9,758

9,373

499
542
1,041
10,799

447
553
999
10,372

2,488
274
2,762

2,029
223
2,252

13,561

12,624

Notes:
(i) Employee benefits consists of amounts for accrued days off, annnual leave and long service leave
accrued by employees, not including on-costs.
(ii) The amounts disclosed are nominal amounts.
(iii) The amounts disclosed are discounted to present values.
(a) Employee Benefits and Related On-Costs
2019
$'000
Current Employee Benefits and Related On-Costs
Unconditional long service leave entitlement
Annual leave entitlements
Accrued days off
Non-Current Employee Benefits and Related On-Costs
Conditional long service leave entitlements
Total Employee Benefits and Related On-Costs

2018
$'000

5,826
4,881
92

5,736
4,533
103

2,762
13,561

2,252
12,624

(b) Movements in On-Cost Provision
2019
$'000
Movement in Long Service Leave:
Balance at Start of Year
Additional provisions recognised
Unwinding of discount and effect of changes in the discount rate
Reduction due to transfer out
Balance at End of Year
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Note 3.4: Employee Benefits in the Balance Sheet (continued)
Employee benefit recognition
Provision is made for benefits accruing to employees in respect of accrued days off, annual leave and long
service leave for services rendered to the reporting date as an expense during the period the services are
delivered.
Provisions
Provisions are recognised when Bairnsdale Regional Health Service has a present obligation, the future sacrifice
of economic benefits is probable, and the amount of the provision can be measured reliably.
The amount recognised as a liability is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
Annual Leave and accrued days off
Liabilities for annual leave and accrued days off are recognised in the provision for employee benefits as
'current liabilities' because Bairnsdale Regional Health Service does not have an unconditional right to defer
settlements of these liabilities.
Depending on the expectation of the timing of settlement, liabilities for salaries and wages, annual leave and
accrued days off are measured at:
• Nominal value – if Bairnsdale Regional Health Service expects to wholly settle within 12 months; or
• Present value – if Bairnsdale Regional Health Service does not expect to wholly settle within 12 months.
Long service leave (LSL)
The liability for long service leave (LSL) is recognised in the provision for employee benefits.
Unconditional LSL is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements as a current liability even where the
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service does not expect to settle the liability within 12 months because it will not
have the unconditional right to defer the settlement of the entitlement should an employee take leave within
12 months. An unconditional right arises after a qualifying period.
The components of this current LSL liability are measured at:
• Nominal value – if Bairnsdale Regional Health Service expects to wholly settle within 12 months;
• Present value – if Bairnsdale Regional Health Service does not expect to wholly settle within 12 months.
Conditional LSL is disclosed as a non-current liability. Any gain or loss following revaluation of the present value
of non-current LSL liability is recognised as a transaction, except to the extent that a gain or loss arises due to
changes in estimations e.g. bond rate movements, inflation rate movements and changes in probability factors
which are then recognised as other economic flows.
Termination benefits
Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated before the normal retirement date or when
an employee decides to accept an offer of benefits in exchange for the termination of employment.
On-costs related to employee expenses
Provision for on-costs such as workers compensation and superannuation are recognised separately from
provisions for employee benefits.
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Note 3.5: Superannuation

Defined benefit plans: (i)
First State Super
Defined contribution plans:
First State Super
H.E.S.T. Australia Ltd
Total

Paid Contribution for
the Year
2019
2018
$'000
$'000

Contribution
Outstanding at Year
End
2019
2018
$'000
$'000

41

52

-

-

2,972
1,547
4,560

2,862
1,408
4,322

-

-

(i) The basis for determining the level of contributions is determined by the various actuaries of the
defined benefit superannuation plans.
Employees of Bairnsdale Regional Health Service are entitled to receive superannuation benefits
and it contributes to both defined benefit and defined contribution plans. The defined benefit plan
provides benefits based on years of service and final average salary.
Defined contribution superannuation plans
In relation to defined contribution (i.e. accumulation) superannuation plans, the associated expense
is simply the employer contributions that are paid or payable in respect of employees who are
members of these plans during the reporting period. Contributions to defined contribution
superannuation plans are expensed when incurred.
Defined benefit superannuation plans
The amount charged to the Comprehensive Operating Statement in respect of defined benefit
superannuation plans represents the contributions made by Bairnsdale Regional Health Service to
the superannuation plans in respect of the services of current Bairnsdale Regional Health Service's
staff during the reporting period. Superannuation contributions are made to the plans based on the
relevant rules of each plan, and are based upon actuarial advice.
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service does not recognise any unfunded defined benefit liability in
respect of the plans because the hospital has no legal or constructive obligation to pay future
benefits relating to its employees; its only obligation is to pay superannuation contributions as they
fall due. The Department of Treasury and Finance discloses the State’s defined benefits liabilities in its
disclosure for administered items.
However superannuation contributions paid or payable for the reporting period are included as part
of employee benefits in the Comprehensive Operating Statement of Bairnsdale Regional Health
Service.
The name, details and amounts that have been expensed in relation to the major employee
superannuation funds and contributions made by Bairnsdale Regional Health Service are disclosed
above.
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Note 4: Key Assets to Support Service Delivery

Bairnsdale Regional Health Service controls infrastructure and other investments that are utilised in
fulfilling its objectives and conducting its activities. They represent the key resources that have
been entrusted to the hospital to be utilised for delivery of those outputs.
Structure
4.1 Other Financial Assets
4.2 Property, Plant and Equipment
4.3 Depreciation
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Note 4.1: Other Financial Assets
Other financial assets
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service classifies its other financial assets between current and non-current
assets based on the Board’s intention at balance date with respect to the timing of disposal of each asset.
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service assesses at each balance sheet date whether a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired.
All financial assets, except for those measured at fair value through the Comprehensive Operating
Statement are subject to annual review for impairment.
Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised when:
• The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
• Bairnsdale Regional Health Service retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed
an obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass through’
arrangement; or
• Bairnsdale Regional Health Service has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and
either:
a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or
b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
the control of the asset.
Where Bairnsdale Regional Health Service has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards or transferred control, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Bairnsdale Regional Health
Service’s continuing involvement in the asset.
Impairment of financial assets
At the end of each reporting period, Bairnsdale Regional Health Service assesses whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial asset is impaired. All financial instrument
assets, except those measured at fair value through profit or loss, are subject to annual review for
impairment.
Where the fair value of an investment in an equity instrument at balance date has reduced by 20 percent
or more than its cost price or where its fair value has been less than its cost price for a period of 12 or more
months, the financial asset is treated as impaired.
In order to determine an appropriate fair value as at 30 June 2019 for its portfolio of financial assets,
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service used the market value of investments held provided by the portfolio
managers.
The above valuation process was used to quantify the level of impairment (if any) on the portfolio of
financial assets as at year end.
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Note 4.2: Property, Plant & Equipment
Initial recognition
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured initially at cost and subsequently revalued at fair value
less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss. Where an asset is acquired for no or nominal cost, the
cost is its fair value at the date of acquisition. Assets transferred as part of a merger/machinery of government
change are transferred at their carrying amounts.
The cost of a leasehold improvement is capitalised as an asset and depreciated over the shorter of the
remaining term of the lease or the estimated useful life of the improvements.
Theoretical opportunities that may be available in relation to the asset(s) are not taken into account until it is
virtually certain that any restrictions will no longer apply. Therefore, unless otherwise disclosed, the current use
of these non-financial physical assets will be their highest and best uses.
Land and buildings are recognised initially at cost and subsequently measured at fair value less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment loss.
Revaluations of non-current physical assets
Non-current physical assets are measured at fair value and are revalued in accordance with FRD103H NonCurrent Physical Assets. This revaluation process normally occurs every five years, based upon the asset's
Government Purpose Classification, but may occur more frequently if fair value assessments indicate material
changes in values. Independent valuers are used to conduct these scheduled revaluations and any interim
revaluations are determined in accordance with the requirements of the FRDs. Revaluation increments or
decrements arise from differences between an asset’s carrying value and fair value.
Revaluation increments are recognised in ‘Other Comprehensive Income’ and are credited directly to the
asset revaluation surplus, except that, to the extent that an increment reverses a revaluation decrement in
respect of that same class of asset previously recognised as an expense in net result, the increment is
recognised as income in the net result.
Revaluation decrements are recognised in ‘Other Comprehensive Income’ to the extent that a credit
balance exists in the asset revaluation surplus in respect of the same class of property, plant and equipment.
Revaluation increases and revaluation decreases relating to individual assets within an asset class are offset
against one another within that class but are not offset in respect of assets in different classes.
Revaluation surplus is not transferred to accumulated funds on de-recognition of the relevant asset,except
where an asset is transferred via contributed capital.
In accordance with FRD103H, Bairnsdale Regional Health Service's non-current physical assets were assessed
to determine whether revaluation of the non-current physical assets was required.
Fair value measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

BAIRNSDALE REGIONAL HEALTH SERVICE 2018/2019

Page 66

Bairnsdale Regional Health Service
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2019

Note 4.2: Property, Plant & Equipment (continued)
Fair value measurement
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, Bairnsdale Regional Health Service has determined classes of assets
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above.
In addition, Bairnsdale Regional Health Service determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in
the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
The Valuer-General Victoria (VGV) is Bairnsdale Regional Health Service’s independent valuation agency.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Valuation hierarchy
In determining fair values a number of inputs are used. To increase consistency and comparability in the
financial statements, these inputs are categorised into three levels, also known as the fair value hierarchy. The
levels are as follows:
• Level 1 – quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
• Level 2 – valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and
• Level 3 – valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.
Identifying unobservable inputs (level 3) fair value measurements
Level 3 fair value inputs are unobservable valuation inputs for an asset or liability. These inputs require
significant judgement and assumptions in deriving fair value for both financial and non-financial assets.
Unobservable inputs shall be used to measure fair value to the extent that relevant observable inputs are not
available, thereby allowing for situations in which there is little, if any, market activity for the asset or liability at
the measurement date. However, the fair value measurement objective remains the same, i.e., an exit price
at the measurement date from the perspective of a market participant that holds the asset or owes the
liability. Therefore, unobservable inputs shall reflect the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk.
Consideration of highest and best use (HBU) for non-financial physical assets
Judgements about highest and best use must take into account the characteristics of the assets concerned,
including restrictions on the use and disposal of assets arising from the asset’s physical nature and any
applicable legislative/contractual arrangements.
In accordance with paragraph AASB 13.29, Bairnsdale Regional Health Service can assume the current use of
a non-financial physical asset is its HBU unless market or other factors suggest that a different use by market
participants would maximise the value of the asset.
Non-specialised land and non-specialised buildings
Non-specialised land and non-specialised buildings are valued using the market approach. Under this
valuation method, the assets are compared to recent comparable sales or sales of comparable assets which
are considered to have nominal or no added improvement value.
For non-specialised land and non-specialised buildings, an independent valuation was performed by the
Valuer-General Victoria to determine the fair value using the market approach. Valuation of the assets was
determined by analysing comparable sales and allowing for share, size, topography, location and other
relevant factors specific to the asset being valued. An appropriate rate per square metre has been applied
to the subject asset. The effective date of the valuation is 30 June 2019.
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Note 4.2: Property, Plant & Equipment (continued)
Specialised land and specialised buildings
Specialised land includes Crown Land which is measured at fair value with regard to the property’s highest
and best use after due consideration is made for any legal or physical restrictions imposed on the asset,
public announcements or commitments made in relation to the intended use of the asset. Theoretical
opportunities that may be available in relation to the assets are not taken into account until it is virtually
certain that any restrictions will no longer apply. Therefore, unless otherwise disclosed, the current use of these
non-financial physical assets will be their highest and best use.
During the reporting period, Bairnsdale Regional Health Service held Crown Land. The nature of this asset
means that there are certain limitations and restrictions imposed on its use and/or disposal that may impact
their fair value.
The market approach is also used for specialised land and specialised buildings although it is adjusted for the
community service obligation (CSO) to reflect the specialised nature of the assets being valued. Specialised
assets contain significant, unobservable adjustments; therefore these assets are classified as Level 3 under the
market based direct comparison approach.
The CSO adjustment is a reflection of the valuer’s assessment of the impact of restrictions associated with an
asset to the extent that is also equally applicable to market participants. This approach is in light of the
highest and best use consideration required for fair value measurement, and takes into account the use of
the asset that is physically possible, legally permissible and financially feasible. As adjustments of CSO are
considered as significant unobservable inputs, specialised land would be classified as Level 3 assets.
For Bairnsdale Regional Health Service, the depreciated replacement cost method is used for the majority of
specialised buildings, adjusting for the associated depreciation. As depreciation adjustments are considered
as significant and unobservable inputs in nature, specialised buildings are classified as Level 3 for fair value
measurements.
An independent valuation of Bairnsdale Regional Health Service ’s specialised land and specialised buildings
was performed by the Valuer-General Victoria. The valuation was performed using the market approach
adjusted for CSO. The effective date of the valuation is 30 June 2019.
Vehicles
The Health Service acquires new vehicles and at times disposes of them before completion of their economic
life. The process of acquisition, use and disosal in the market is managed by the Health Service who set
relevant depreciation rates during use of the consumption of the vehicles. As a result, the fair value of
vehicles does not differ materially from the carrying value (depreciated cost).
Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment (including medical equipment, computers and communication equipment and
furniture and fittings are held at carrying amount (depreciated cost). When plant and equipment is
specialised in use, such that it is rarely sold other than as part of a going concern, the depreciated
replacement cost is used to estimate the fair value. Unless there is market evidence that current replacement
costs are significantly different from the original acquisition cost, it is considered unlikely that depreciated
replacement cost will be materially different from the existing carrying amount.
There were no changes in valuation techniques throughout the period to 30 June 2019.
For all assets measured at fair value, the current use is considered the highest and best use.
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Note 4.2: Property, Plant & Equipment
(a) Gross carrying amount and accumulated depreciation
2019
$'000
Land
Land at fair value
Crown land - other at fair value
Total Land

2018
$'000

3,459
681
4,140

3,131
682
3,813

17

4,094

Buildings at fair value
Less accumulated depreciation
Total Buildings

42,789
42,806

40,996
10,836
34,254

Plant and Equipment
Plant and equipment at fair value
Less accumulated depreciation
Total Plant and Equipment

5,116
2,181
2,936

3,402
2,020
1,382

Medical Equipment
Medical equipment at fair value
Less accumulated depreciation
Total Medical Equipment

8,346
5,092
3,253

8,186
5,223
2,963

Motor Vehicles
Motor vehicles at fair value
Less accumulated depreciation
Total Motor Vehicles

875
275
600

957
465
492

5,182
1,989
3,193

4,517
1,783
2,734

896
415
480

922
369
553

57,408

46,191

Buildings
Buildings under construction at cost

Computers and Communication
Computers & communication at fair value
Less accumulated depreciation
Total Computers & Communication
Furniture and Fittings
Furniture & fittings at fair value
Less accumulated depreciation
Total Furniture & Fittings
Total Property, Plant & Equipment
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546
3,813
249
78
4,140

$'000
3,267
-

Plant and
Medical
Equipment Equipment
$'000
$'000
$'000
34,987
1,429
2,985
2,003
172
732
(5)
(5)
(2,735)
(213)
(748)
34,254
1,382
2,963
156
1,480
861
(0)
(12)
(543)
280
143
11,679
(2,740)
(206)
(701)
42,806
2,936
3,253

Buildings

Motor
Vehicles
$'000
489
281
(174)
(104)
492
365
(163)
(95)
600

Furniture
Computers
and Fittings
$'000
$'000
2,089
617
1,008
9
(0)
(0)
(364)
(72)
2,734
553
856
5
(1)
(6)
120
(516)
(72)
3,193
480

546
(4,237)
46,191
3,972
(182)
11,756
(4,330)
57,408

$'000
45,862
4,205
(185)

Total

The Valuer-General Victoria undertook to re-value all of Bairnsdale Regional Health Service's owned and leased land and buildings to determine
their fair value. The valuation, which conforms to Australian Valuation Standards, was determined by reference to the amounts for which assets could
be exchanged between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length transaction. The valuation was based on independent assessments. The
effective date of the valuation is 30 June 2019.

Land and buildings carried at valuation

Balance at 1 July 2017
Additions
Disposals
Net transfers between classes
Revaluation increments
Depreciation (note 4.3)
Balance at 1 July 2018
Additions
Disposals
Net transfers between classes
Revaluation increments
Depreciation (note 4.3)
Balance at 30 June 2019

Land

(b) Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of each class of asset

Note 4.2: Property, Plant & Equipment (continued)
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Note 4.2: Property, Plant & Equipment (continued)
(c) Fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 30 June 2019
Carrying
amount as
at 30 June
2019
Land at fair value
Non-specialised land
Specialised land
Total of land at fair value
Buildings at fair value
Non-specialised buildings
Specialised buildings
Total of building at fair value

1,125
3,015
4,140

2,365
40,441
42,806

Plant and equipment at fair value
Plant equipment and vehicles at fair value
- Vehicles
- Furniture & fittings
- Computers & communication
- Plant and equipment
Total of plant, equipment and vehicles at fair value

600
480
3,193
2,936
7,209

Medical equipment at fair value
Total medical equipment at fair value

3,253
57,408

Fair value measurement at end of
reporting period using:
Level 1 (i)

Level 2 (i)

-

-

Level 3 (i)

1,125
1,125

3,015
3,015

2,365

40,441
40,441

2,365

600

-

600

480
3,193
2,936
6,610

3,253
-

4,090

53,318

Note
i Classified in accordance with the fair value hierarchy.
ii There have been no transfers between levels during the period.
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Note 4.2: Property, Plant & Equipment (continued)
(c) Fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 30 June 2018
Carrying
amount as
at 30 June
2018
Land at fair value
Non-specialised land
Specialised land
Total of land at fair value
Buildings at fair value
Non-specialised buildings
Specialised buildings
Total of building at fair value

3,131
682
3,813

4,483
29,771
34,254

Plant and equipment at fair value
Plant equipment and vehicles at fair value
- Vehicles
- Furniture & fittings
- Computers & communication
- Plant and equipment
Total of plant, equipment and vehicles at fair value

492
553
2,734
1,382
5,161

Medical equipment at fair value
Total medical equipment at fair value

2,963
46,191

Fair value measurement at end of
reporting period using:
Level 1 (i)

Level 2 (i)

Level 3 (i)

3,131
-

3,131

4,483
-

4,483

29,771
29,771

492

-

492

553
2,734
1,382
4,669

2,963
-

8,107

Note
i Classified in accordance with the fair value hierarchy.
ii There have been no transfers between levels during the period.
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590
-

590

92
92
682

Balance at 1 July 2017
Additions/(disposals)

Gains or losses recognised in net result
- Depreciation
Subtotal

Items recognised in other comprehensive income
- Revaluation
Subtotal
Balance at 30 June 2018

Land

(38)
(38)
3,015

Items recognised in other comprehensive income
- Revaluation
Subtotal
Balance at 30 June 2019

30 June 2018

(2,439)
28,849

3,053

29,771

(2,528)
29,771

30,324
1,975

Buildings

11,592
11,592
40,441

29,771
156
1,361

Buildings

682
249
2,122

Land

Balance at 1 July 2018
Additions/(disposals)
Transfers between levels
Gains or losses recognised in net result
- Depreciation
Subtotal

30 June 2019

(d) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement

Note 4.2: Property, Plant & Equipment (continued)

1,382

(213)
1,382

2,963

(748)
2,963

2,985
726

Medical
Equipment

Plant and
Equipment
1,429
166

3,253

(701)
3,253

2,963
992
-

Medical
Equipment

2,936

(206)
2,936

1,382
1,760
-

Plant and
Equipment

480

(72)
480

553
(1)
-

2,734

(364)
2,734

2,089
1,008

553

(72)
553

617
8

Computers and
Furniture
Communication and Fittings

3,193

(516)
3,193

2,734
975
-

Computers and
Furniture
Communication and Fittings
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Note 4.2: Property, Plant & Equipment (continued)
(e) Fair value determination

Asset class
Non-specialised land

Significant inputs
(Level 3 only)

Likely valuation approach
Market approach

N/A

Market approach

Community Service
Obligation (CSO)
adjustments

Market approach

N/A

Specialised land (Crown)

Non-specialised buildings

Specialised buildings
Depreciated replacement Direct cost per square
cost approach
metre

Useful life of specialised
buildings
Plant and Equipment
Depreciated replacement Useful life of plant and
cost approach
equipment
Cost per unit
Vehicles
Market approach

N/A

(i) CSO adjustment of 20% was applied to reduce the market approach value for Bairnsdale Regional Health
Service's specialised land.
There were no changes in valuation techniques throughout the period to 30 June 2019.
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Note 4.2: Property, Plant & Equipment (continued)
(f) Property, plant and equipment revaluation surplus
2019

2018

$'000

$'000

Property, plant and equipment revaluation surplus
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period
Transfer to accumulated deficits
- Land

24,764
-

24,218
-

Revaluation increment
- Land (refer Note 4.2 b)
- Building
Balance at the end of the reporting period*

78
11,679
36,521

546
24,764

2,611
33,910
36,521

2,533
22,231
24,764

*Represented by:
- Land
- Building
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Note 4.3: Depreciation
2019
$'000
Depreciation
Buildings
Plant & equipment
Medical equipment
Motor vehicles
Computers & communication
Furniture & fittings
Total Depreciation

2018
$'000

2,740
206
701
95
516
72
4,330

2,735
213
748
104
364
72
4,237

All infrastructure assets, buildings, plant and equipment and other non-financial physical assets
(excluding items under operating leases, assets held for sale, land and investment properties) that
have finite useful lives are depreciated. Depreciation is generally calculated on a straight-line basis
at rates that allocate the asset’s value, less any estimated residual value over its estimated useful
life.
The following table indicates the expected useful lives of non-current assets on which the
depreciation charges are based.

Buildings
- Structure Shell Building Fabric
- Site Engineering Services and Central Plant
Plant & Equipment
Medical Equipment
Computers and Communication
Furniture and Fitting
Motor Vehicles

2019

2018

38 to 50 years
23 to 45 years
3 to 15 years
3 to 15 years
3 to 10 years
4 to 30 years
8 to 15 years

38 to 50 years
23 to 45 years
3 to 15 years
3 to 15 years
3 to 10 years
4 to 30 years
8 to 15 years

As part of the buildings valuation, building values were separated into components and each
component assessed for its useful life which is represented above.
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Note 5: Other Assets and Liabilities
This section sets out those assets and liabilities that arose from Bairnsdale Regional Health
Service's operations.
Structure
5.1 Receivables
5.2 Payables
5.3 Other Liabilities
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Note 5.1: Receivables
2019
$'000
Current
Contractual
Trade debtors
Patient fees
Accrued investment income
Accrued revenue
Less: Allowance for impairment losses of contractual receivables
Trade debtors
Patient fees
Statutory
GST receivable
Accrued revenue - Department of Health and Human Services
Total Current Receivables
Non-Current
Statutory
Long service leave - Department of Health and Human Services
Total Non-Current Receivables
Total Receivables

2018
$'000

450
908
149

338
822
98
146

(2)
(33)
1,472

(1)
(33)
1,370

422
234
656
2,128

350
182
531
1,902

1,423
1,423
3,552

1,200
1,200
3,102

(a) Movement in the allowance for impairment losses of contractual receivables
2019
$'000
Balance at beginning of year
(Decrease)/increase in allowance recognised in net result
Balance at end of year

2018
$'000

34
1
35

26
8
34

Receivable recognition
Receivables consist of:
• Contractual receivables, which consists of debtors in relation to goods and services and accrued investment
income. These receivables are classified as financial instruments and categorised as ‘financial assets at
amortised costs’. They are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs.
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service holds the contractual receivables with the objective to collect the
contractual cash flows and therefore subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment.
• Statutory receivables, which predominantly includes amounts owing from the Victorian Government and
Goods and Services Tax (GST) input tax credits recoverable. Statutory receivables do not arise from contracts and
are recognised and measured similarly to contractual receivables (except for impairment), but are not classified
as financial instruments for disclosure purposes. Bairnsdale Regional Health Service applies AASB 9 for initial
measurement of the statutory receivables and as a result statutory receivables are initially recognised at fair
value plus any directly attributable transaction cost.
Trade debtors are carried at nominal amounts due and are due for settlement within 30 days from the date of
recognition.
In assessing impairment of statutory (non-contractual) financial assets, which are not financial instruments,
professional judgement is applied in assessing materiality using estimates, averages and other computational
methods in accordance with AASB 136 Impairment of Assets.
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Note 5.1: Receivables (continued)
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service is not exposed to any significant credit risk exposure to any
single counterparty or any group of counterparties having similar characteristics. Trade receivables
consist of a large number of customers in various geographical areas. Based on historical
information about customer default rates, management consider the credit quality of trade
receivables that are not past due or impaired to be good.
Impairment losses of contractual receivables
Refer to Note 7.1(c) Contractual receivables at amortised costs for Bairnsdale Regional Health
Service’s contractual impairment losses.

Note 5.2: Payables
2019
$'000
Current
Contractual
Trade creditors
Accrued salaries and wages
Accrued expenses
Salary packaging
PPI medical payable
Income in advance
Consultants payable

2018
$'000

2,880
1,052
1,253
4
0
81
6
5,277

2,569
877
1,115
14
1
211
0
4,787

Total Current

15
1,745
1,760
7,037

15
731
746
5,533

Total Payables

7,037

5,533

Statutory
GST payable
Department of Health and Human Services

Payables consist of:
• contractual payables, classified as financial instruments and measured at amortised cost.
Accounts payable and salaries and wages payable represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to Bairnsdale Regional Health Service prior to the end of the financial year that are
unpaid; and
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Note 5.2: Payables (continued)
Payables consist of:
• statutory payables, that are recognised and measured similarly to contractual payables, but
are not classified as financial instruments and not included in the category of financial liabilities
at amortised cost, because they do not arise from contracts.
The normal credit terms for accounts payable are usually Nett 60 days.
Maturity analysis of payables
Please refer to Note 7.1 (b) for the ageing analysis of payables.

Note 5.3: Other Liabilities
2019
$'000

2018
$'000

Current
Monies held in trust
- Resident monies held in trust
- Accommodation deposits
Total Other Liabilities

338
10,893
11,231

510
10,481
10,991

Total Monies Held in Trust
Represented by the following assets:
Cash assets
Total Monies Held in Trust

11,231
11,231

10,991
10,991

BAIRNSDALE REGIONAL HEALTH SERVICE 2018/2019

Page 80

Bairnsdale Regional Health Service
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2019

Note 6: How We Finance Our Operations

This section provides information on the sources of finance utilised by Bairndale Regional Health
Service during its operations, along with interest expenses (the cost of borrowings) and other
information related to financing activities of Bairnsdale Regional Health Service.
This section includes disclosures of balances that are financial instruments (such as borrowings and
cash balances). Note 7.1 provides additional, specific financial instrument disclosures.
Structure
6.1 Borrowings
6.2 Cash and Cash Equivalents
6.3 Commitments for Expenditure
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Note 6.1: Borrowings
2019
$'000

2018
$'000

Current
– TCV loan (i)
– Department of Health and Human Services loan (ii)
Total Current Borrowings

77
248
325

72
200
272

Non-Current
– TCV loan (i)
– Department of Health and Human Services loan (ii)
Total Non-Current Borrowings

390
699
1,089

467
902
1,369

Total Borrowings

1,414

1,641

(i) TCV loan is unsecured with a fixed rate of 5.88% over a total period of 20 years, ending in
September 2024.
(ii) This is unsecured loan which bears no interest over a total period of five years, ending in June
2023.

(a) Maturity analysis of borrowings
Please refer to note 7.1(b) for the ageing analysis of borrowings.
(b) Defaults and breaches
During the current and prior year, there were no defaults and breaches of any of the loans.
(c) Operating lease liabilities
The operating leases relate to medical equipment held by Bairnsdale Regional Health Service with
lease terms between five to ten years. All operating lease contracts contain market review
clauses in the event that the lessee exercises its option to renew.
2019
$'000
Non-cancellable operating lease payable
Not longer than one year
Longer than one year but not longer than five years
Longer than five years

532
532

2018
$'000
742
532
1,273

Borrowing recognition
A lease is a right to use an asset for an agreed period of time in exchange for payment. Leases are
classified at their inception as either operating or finance leases based on the economic substance of
the agreement so as to reflect the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.
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Note 6.1: Borrowings (continued)
Borrowing recognition
Leases of property, plant and equipment are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases, in the manner described in
Note 6.3 Commitments.
Borrowings
All borrowings are initially recognised at fair value of the consideration received, less
directly attributable transaction costs. The measurement basis subsequent to initial
recognition depends on whether Bairnsdale Regional Health Service has categorised its
liability as either ‘financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss’, or
financial liabilities at ‘amortised cost’.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest bearing borrowings are measured at amortised
cost with any difference between the initial recognised amount and the redemption
value being recognised in the net result over the period of the borrowing using the
effective interest method. Non-interest bearing borrowings are measured at ‘fair value
through profit or loss’.
Interest free loans provided by the department are designated at fair value through
profit or loss’, Accordingly disclosure in the financial statements should be at Net Present
Value.

Note 6.2: Cash and Cash Equivalents
2019
$'000
Cash on hand (excluding monies held in trust)
Cash at bank (excluding monies held in trust)
Deposits at call (excluding monies held in trust)
Term deposits (excluding monies held in trust)
Cash at bank (monies held in trust)
Deposits at call (monies held in trust)
Term deposits (monies held in trust)
Total cash and cash equivalents

6
1,880
13,570
338
10,893
26,687

2018
$'000
7
1,705
320
14,119
110
10,881
27,142

Cash and cash equivalents recognised on the balance sheet comprise cash on hand
and cash at bank, deposits at call and highly liquid investments (with an original maturity
of three months or less), which are held for the purpose of meeting short term cash
commitments rather than for investment purposes, which are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash with an insignificant risk of changes in value.
For cash flow statement presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalents include bank
overdrafts, which are included as liabilities on the balance sheet. The cash flow
statement includes monies held in trust.
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Note 6.3: Commitments for Expenditure
2019
$'000

2018
$'000

Capital Expenditure Commitments
Less than 1 year
Plant and equipments
Computers & communication
Total Capital Expenditure Commitments

363
7
369

-

Non-cancellable Operating Lease Commitments
Less than 1 year
Longer than 1 year but not longer than 5 years
Total Non- cancellable Operating Lease Commitments

532
532

742
532
1,273

Total Commitments for Expenditure (Inclusive of GST)

901

1,273

Less GST Recoverable from the Australian Tax Office

(48)

Total Commitments for Expenditure (Exclusive of GST)

853

(116)
1,158

Commitments for future expenditure include operating and capital commitments arising from
contracts. These commitments are disclosed by way of a note at their nominal value and are
inclusive of the GST payable. In addition, where it is considered appropriate and provides
additional relevant information to users, the net present values of significant individual projects
are stated. These future expenditures cease to be disclosed as commitments once the related
liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet.
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service has entered into commercial leases on certain medical
equipment where it is not in the interest of Bairnsdale Regional Health Service to purchase these
assets. These leases have an average life of between 1 and 20 years with renewal terms included
in the contracts. Renewals are at the option of Bairnsdale Regional Health Service. There are no
restrictions placed upon the lessee by entering into these leases.
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Note 7: Risks, Contingencies and Valuation Uncertainties

Bairnsdale Regional Health Service is exposed to risk from its activities and outside factors. In
addition, it is often necessary to make judgements and estimates associated with recognition and
measurement of items in the financial statements. This section sets out financial instrument specific
information, (including exposures to financial risks) as well as those items that are contingent in
nature or require a higher level of judgement to be applied, which for the hospital is related mainly
to fair value determination.
Structure
7.1 Financial Instruments
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Note 7.1: Financial Instruments
Financial instruments arise out of contractual agreements that give rise to a financial asset of one entity and
a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Due to the nature of Bairnsdale Regional Health
Service's activities, certain financial assets and financial liabilities arise under statute rather than a contract.
Such financial assets and financial liabilities do not meet the definition of financial instruments in AASB 132
Financial Instruments: Presentation.
Note 7.1(a) Financial instruments: categorisation

Financial Assets at
Amortised Cost

Financial
Liabilities at
Amortised Cost

Total

$'000

$'000

$'000

2019
Contractual Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
- Other Receivables
Total Financial Assets

(i)

26,687

-

26,687

1,472
28,159

-

1,472
28,159

Financial Liabilities
Payables
Borrowings
Other Financial Liabilities
- Accommodation Deposits
- Resident Monies Held in Trust
Total Financial Liabilities (i)

-

5,277
1,414

5,277
1,414

-

10,893
338
17,922

10,893
338
17,922

Contractual
financial assets Contractual
loans and
financial liabilities
receivables
at amortised cost
2018
Contractual Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
- Other Receivables
Total Financial Assets

(i)

Financial Liabilities
Payables
Borrowings
Other Financial Liabilities
- Accommodation Deposits
- Residents Monies Held in Trust
Total Financial Liabilities (i)

$'000

$'000

Total
$'000

27,142

-

27,142

1,370
28,512

-

1,370
28,512

-

4,787
1,641

4,787
1,641

-

10,481
510
17,419

10,481
510
17,419

(i) The carrying amount excludes statutory receivables (i.e. GST receivable and DHHS receivable) and
statutory payables (i.e. Revenue in Advance and DHHS payable).
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Note 7.1: Financial Instruments (continued)
From 1 July 2018, Bairnsadale Regional Health Service applies AASB 9 and classifies all of its financial
assets based on the business model for managing the assets and the asset’s contractual terms.
Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial assets are measured at amortised costs if both of the following criteria are met and the
assets are not designated as fair value through net result:
• the assets are held by Bairnsdale Regional Health Service to collect the contractual cash flows, and
• the assets’ contractual terms give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interests.
These assets are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less any impairment.
The health service recognises the following assets in this category:
• cash and deposits;
• receivables (excluding statutory receivables).
Categories of financial assets previously under AASB 139
Loans and receivables and cash are financial instrument assets with fixed and determinable
payments that are not quoted on an active market. These assets and liabilities are initially recognised
at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial measurement, loans
and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method (and for assets,
less any impairment). Bairnsdale Regional Health Service recognises the following assets in this
category:
• cash and deposits
• receivables (excluding statutory receivables); and
• term deposits.
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities at amortised cost are initially recognised on the date they are originated. They are
initially measured at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, these financial instruments are measured at amortised cost with any difference between
the initial recognised amount and the redemption value being recognised in profit and loss over the
period of the interest bearing liability, using the effective interest rate method. Bairnsdale Regional
Health Service recognises the following liabilities in this category:
• payables (excluding statutory payables);
• borrowings (including finance lease liabilities); and
• accommodation deposits and resident monies held in trust.
Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired.
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Note 7.1: Financial Instruments (continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or
expires.
Impairment of financial assets
At the end of each reporting period, Bairnsdale Regional Health Service assesses whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. All financial
instrument assets, except those measured at fair value through profit or loss, are subject to annual
review for impairment.
The allowance is the difference between the financial asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. In assessing impairment of
statutory (non-contractual) financial assets, which are not financial instruments, professional
judgement is applied in assessing materiality using estimates, averages and other computational
methods in accordance with AASB 136 Impairment of Assets.
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10,893
338

5.3
5.3

10,481
510

5.3
5.3

17,419

4,787
1,641

5.2
6.1

17,922

5,277
1,414

5.2
6.1

16,543

10,481
510

3,911
1,641

17,922

10,893
338

5,277
1,414

Nominal
Amount
$'000

3,922

-

3,911
12

5,290

-

5,277
12

6

-

6

13

-

13

3,909

3,144
510

254

5,764

5,120
338

306

Maturity Dates
Less than 1 1-3 Months 3 months Month
1 Year
$'000
$'000
$'000

(i) Ageing analysis of financial liabilities excludes the types of statutory financial liabilities (i.e GST payable).

Total Financial Liabilities

2018
Financial Liabilities
Payables
Borrowings
Other financial liabilities (i)
- Accommodation deposits
- Other

Total Financial Liabilities

Financial Liabilities
Payables
Borrowings
Other financial liabilities (i)
- Accommodation deposits
- Other

2019

Note

Carrying
Amount
$'000

8,705

7,337
-

1,369

6,856

5,774
-

1,082

$'000

1-5 Years

The following table discloses the contractual maturity analysis for Bairnsdale Regional Health Service's financial liabilities. For interest
rates applicable to each class of liability refer to individual notes to the financial statements.

Note 7.1 (b): Maturity analysis of financial liabilities as at 30 June

Note 7.1: Financial Instruments (continued)

Bairnsdale Regional Health Service
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Loss allowance

Expected loss rate
Other contractual receivables

Loss allowance

Expected loss rate
Patient fees

Loss allowance

Gross carrying amount of contractual receivables
Expected loss rate
Trade debtors

2018

Loss allowance

0%
-

7%
154
10

0%
520
0%
244
-

0%
94
-

0%
-

0%
149
-

Expected loss rate
Other contractual receivables

Loss allowance

0%
200
-

5%
220
11

0%
471
-

Loss allowance

Expected loss rate
Patient fees

Less than 1
Month
$'000
0%
26
-

$'000

Current

0%
374
-

Gross carrying amount of contractual receivables
Expected loss rate
Trade debtors

2019

(c) Contractual receivables at amortised costs

Note 7.1: Financial Instruments (continued)

$'000

0%
-

42%
33
10

0%
33
-

0%
-

17%
93
16

0%
21
-

1-3 Months

0%
-

12%
116
13

7%
11
1

0%
-

5%
124
6

7%
29
2

3 months - 1
Year
$'000

244
-

822
33

338
1

149
-

908
33

450
2

$'000

Total
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Note 7.1: Financial Instruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets under AASB 9 – applicable from 1 July 2018
From 1 July 2018, Bairnsdale Regional Health Service has been recording the allowance for
expected credit loss for the relevant financial instruments, replacing AASB 139’s incurred loss
approach with AASB 9’s Expected Credit Loss approach. Subject to AASB 9 impairment assessment
include Bairnsdale Regional Health Service’s contractual receivables, statutory receivables and its
investment in debt instruments.
Equity instruments are not subject to impairment under AASB 9. Other financial assets mandatorily
measured or designated at fair value through net result are not subject to impairment assessment
under AASB 9. While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the impairment requirements of
AASB 9, the identified impairment loss was immaterial.
Contractual receivables at amortised cost
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service applies AASB 9 simplified approach for all contractual
receivables to measure expected credit losses using a lifetime expected loss allowance based on
the assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. Bairnsdale Regional Health Service
has grouped contractual receivables on shared credit risk characteristics and days past due and
select the expected credit loss rate based on the health service’s past history, existing market
conditions, as well as forward looking estimates at the end of the financial year.
On this basis, Bairnsdale Regional Health Service determines the opening loss allowance on initial
application date of AASB 9 and the closing loss allowance at end of the financial year as disclosed
above.
Reconciliation of the movement in the loss allowance for contractual receivables
2019
$'000

2018
$'000

Balance at beginning of the year
Opening retained earning adjustment at adopton of AASB9
Opening loss alowance

34
-

Increased in provision recognised in the net result
Balance at end of the year

1
35

BAIRNSDALE REGIONAL HEALTH SERVICE 2018/2019

26
8
34

Page 91

Bairnsdale Regional Health Service
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2019

Note 7.1: Financial Instruments (continued)
Credit loss allowance is classified as other economic flows in the net result. Contractual receivables
are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery and impairment losses are
classified as a transaction expense. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against the same line item.
In prior years, a provision for doubtful debts is recognised when there is objective evidence that the
debts may not be collected and bad debts are written off when identified. A provision is made for
estimated irrecoverable amounts from the sale of goods when there is objective evidence that an
individual receivable is impaired. Bad debts considered as written off by mutual consent.
Statutory receivables at amortised cost [AASB2016-8.4]
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service’s non-contractual receivables arising from statutory requirements
are not financial instruments. However, they are nevertheless recognised and measured in
accordance with AASB 9 requirements as if those receivables are financial instruments.
The statutory receivables are considered to have low credit risk, taking into account the
counterparty’s credit rating, risk of default and capacity to meet contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term. As the result, the loss allowance recognised for these financial assets during the period
was limited to 12 months expected losses. No loss allowance recognised at 30 June 2018 under AASB
139. No additional loss allowance required upon transition into AASB 9 on 1 July 2018.
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Note 8: Other Disclosures

This section includes additional material disclosures required by accounting standards or otherwise,
for the understanding of this annual report.
Structure
8.1 Reconciliation of Net Result for the Year to Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities
8.2 Responsible Persons Disclosures
8.3 Remuneration of Executives
8.4 Related Parties
8.5 Remuneration of Auditors
8.6 Ex-gratia payments
8.7 Events Occurring after the Balance Sheet Date
8.8 Jointly Controlled Operations
8.9 Economic Dependency
8.10 AASBs Issued that are not yet Effective
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Note 8.1: Reconciliation of Net Result for the Year to Net Cash from
Operating Activities

Net Result for the Period

2019
$'000
(2,830)

2018
$'000
(2,231)

Non-Cash Movements:
Depreciation
Provision for doubtful debts

4,330
1

4,237
8

21

39

Movements Included in Investing and Financing Activities
Net loss from disposal of non financial physical assets
Movements in Assets and Liabilities:
Change in operating assets and liabilities
Decrease in receivables
Decrease in other assets
Decrease/(increase) in inventories
Increase/(decrease) in payables
Increase in provisions
Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Operating Activities
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(451)
(94)
(75)
1,504
937
3,344

(75)
38
62
2,739
1,624
6,441
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Note 8.2: Responsible Persons Disclosures
In accordance with the Ministerial Directions issued by the Assistant Treasurer under the Financial
Management Act 1994 , the following disclosures are made regarding responsible persons for the
reporting period.
Period
Responsible Ministers
The Honourable Jill Hennessy, Minister for Health and Minister for
Ambulance Services
The Honourable Jenny Mikakos, Minister for Health and Minister for
Ambulance Services
The Honourable Martin Foley, Minister for Mental Health

1/7/2018 - 29/11/2018
29/11/2018 - 30/06/2019
1/7/2018 - 30/6/2019

The Honourable Martin Foley, Minister for Housing, Disability and Ageing

1/7/2018 - 29/11/2018

The Honourable Luke Donnellan, Minister for Child Protection, Minister for
Disability, Ageing and Carers

29/11/2018 - 30/06/2019

Governing Boards
A. Hutson (Chair of the Board)
P. Murphy (Chair of the Baord)
A. Talko-Nicholas
B. Moar
BP. Hammond
C. Barry
C. Burrell
H. Newby
J. Small
M. Urie
S. Fraser

1/7/2018 - 31/8/2018
31/8/2018 - 30/6/2019
1/7/2018 - 30/6/2019
1/7/2018 - 30/6/2019
30/1/2019 - 30/6/2019
1/7/2018 - 30/6/2019
1/7/2018 - 30/6/2019
30/1/2019 - 30/6/2019
1/7/2018 - 30/6/2019
1/7/2018 - 30/6/2019
1/7/2018 - 30/6/2019

Accountable Officers
Mrs R. Hayles

1/7/2018 - 30/6/2019

Remuneration of Responsible Persons
The number of Responsible Persons are shown in their relevant income bands:

Income Band
$0 - $9,999
$10,000 - $19,999
$130,000 - $139,999
$290,000 - $299,999
$310,000 - $319,000
Total Numbers

Total remuneration received or due and receivable by responsible
persons from the reporting entity amounted to:

BAIRNSDALE REGIONAL HEALTH SERVICE 2018/2019

2019
No.

2018
No.
3
8

10
-

-

1
1
1
12

12

2019
$'000

2018
$'000

436

431
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Note 8.2: Responsible Persons Disclosures (continued)
Amounts relating to the Governing Board Members and Accountable Officer are disclosed in
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service’s controlled entities financial statements.
Amounts relating to Responsible Ministers are reported within the Department of Parliamentary
Services' Financial Report as disclosed in Note 8.4 Related Parties.
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Note 8.3: Remuneration of Executives
The number of executive officers, other than Ministers and Accountable Officers, and their total
remuneration during the reporting period are shown in the table below. Total annualised employee
equivalent provides a measure of full time equivalent executive officers over the reporting period.

Remuneration of Executive officers

Short-term benefits
Post-employment benefits
Other long-term benefits
Total Remuneration
Total Number of Executives
Total Annualised Employee Equivalents (AEE) (i)

Total Remuneration
2019
2018
$'000
$'000
847
845
66
83
63
42
976
971
7
5.0

5
5.0

(i) The total number of executive officers includes persons who meet the definition of Key
Management Personnel (KMP) of Bairnsdale Regional Health Services under AASB 124 Related Party
Disclosures and are also reported within Note 8.4 Related Parties.
(ii) Annualised employee equivalent is based on working 38 ordinary hours per week over the reporting
period.
Remuneration comprises employee benefits in all forms of consideration paid, payable or provided in
exchange for services rendered, and is disclosed in the following categories:
Short-term employee benefits
Salaries and wages, annual leave or sick leave that are usually paid or payable on a regular basis, as
well as non-monetary benefits such as allowances and free or subsidised goods or services.
Post-employment benefits
Pensions and other retirement benefits paid or payable on a discrete basis when employment has
ceased.
Other long-term benefits
Long service leave, other long-service benefit or deferred compensation.
Other factors
Several factors affected total remuneration payable to executives over the year. A number of
executive officers resigned in the past year. However the impact on remuneration figures was not
material.
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Note 8.4: Related Parties
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service is a wholly owned and controlled entity of the State of Victoria.
Related parties of the hospital include:
• All key management personnel (KMP) and their close family members;
• Cabinet ministers (where applicable) and their close family members;
• Jointly Controlled Operation - A member of the Gippsland Health Alliance; and
• All hospitals and public sector entities that are controlled and consolidated into the State of
Victoria financial statements.
KMPs are those people with the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the
activities of Bairnsdale Regional Health Service, directly or indirectly.
The Board of Directors and the Executive Directors of Bairnsdale Regional Health Service are deemed
to be KMPs.
Entity
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service

KMPs
P. Murphy
A. Hutson
A. Talko-Nicholas
B. Moar
BP. Hammond
C. Barry
C. Burrell
H. Newby
J. Small
M. Urie
S. Fraser
R. Hayles
B. Brown
B. Hammond
B. Morfis
D. McConachy
L. Daniel
M. McAlister
T. Donaldson

Position Title
Chair of the Board
Chair of the Board
Board Member
Board Member
Board Member
Board Member
Board Member
Board Member
Board Member
Board Member
Board Member
Chief Executive Officer
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Interim Director
Director

The compensation detailed below is reported in $'000 and excludes the salaries and benefits the
Portfolio Ministers receive. The Minister’s remuneration and allowances is set by the Parliamentary
Salaries and Superannuation Act 1968 , and is reported within the Department of Parliamentary
Services’ Financial Report.
2019 ($'000) 2018 ($'000)
Compensation - KMPs
1,247
1,236
Short-term employee benefits (i)
87
120
Post-employment benefits
78
46
Other long-term benefits
1,412
1,402
Total (ii)
(i) Total remuneration paid to KMPs employed as a contractor during the reporting period through
accounts payable has been repored under short-term employee benefits.
(ii) KMPs are also reported in Note 8.2 Responsible Persons or Note 8.3 Remuneration of Executives.
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Note 8.4: Related Parties (continued)
Significant transactions with government related entities
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service received funding from the Department of Health and Human
Services, Commonwealth Department of Health and Dental Health Services Victoria of $81 million
(2018: $77 million).
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service received an unsecured loan from Department of Health and
Human Services in prior year of $1.1 million, which bears no interest over a total period of five years
ending in June 2023.
Expenses incurred by Bairnsdale Regional Health Service in delivering services and outputs are in
accordance with Health Purchasing Victoria requirements. Goods and services including
procurement, diagnostics, patient meals and multi-site operational support are provided by other
Victorian Health Service Providers on commercial terms.
Professional medical indemnity insurance and other insurance products are obtained from a
Victorian Public Financial Corporation.
The Standing Directions of the Minister for Finance require Bairnsdale Regional Health Service to hold
cash (in excess of working capital) in accordance with the State’s centralised banking
arrangements. All borrowings are required to be sourced from Treasury Corporation Victorian unless
an exemption has been approved by the Minister for Health and Human Services and the Treasurer.
Transaction with key management personnel and other related parties
Given the breadth and depth of State government activities, related parties transact with the
Victorian public sector in a manner consistent with other members of the public e.g. stamp duty and
other government fees and charges. Further employment of processes within the Victorian public
sector occur on terms and conditions consistent with the Public Administration Act 2004 and Codes
of Conduct and Standards issued by the Victorian Public Sector Commission. Procurement processes
occur on terms and conditions consistent with the Victorian Government Procurement Board
requirements.
Outside of normal citizen type transactions with Bairnsdale Regional Health Service, there were no
related party transactions other than disclosed below that involved key management personnel,
their close family members and their personal business interests. No provision has been required, nor
any expense recognised, for impairment of receivables from related parties.
There were no related party transactions with Cabinet Ministers required to be disclosed in 2019.
Except for the transaction listed below, there were no other related party transactions required to be
disclosed for Bairndale Regional Health Service Board of Directors in 2019.
Specific disclosure note
In the prior year, Dr. John Urie, the husband of Mendy Urie, provided services as a principal of a
supplier. For the prior year the value billed under the contract was $180,000. In the current year, he
was not a principal of the supplier.
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Note 8.4: Related Parties (continued)
During the year, Angela Hutson was a board member of East Gippsland Water and TAFE
Gippsland (formally Federation Training). The transactions involved provision of water supply to
the health service and health service provision of training to TAFE Gippsland. For the current year,
the value billed up to August 2018 when she retired from the Board to East Gippsland Water was
$48,000 (2018: $198,000). The value received up to August 2018 from TAFE Gippsland was $17,000
(2018: $7,000).
During the year, Jonathan Barry, the son of Christopher Barry was an employee of the Health
Service and is paid on normal terms and conditions.

Note 8.5: Remuneration of Auditors
2019
$'000

2018
$'000

Victorian Auditor-General's Office
Audit of the financial statements

38

38

Total Remuneration of Auditors

38

38

Note 8.6: Ex-gratia Expenses
2019
$'000

2018
$'000

Bairnsdale Regional Health Service has made the following ex-gratia
expenses:
Compensation for economic loss

-

8

Total Ex-Gratia Expenses

-

8

Note 8.7: Events Occurring after the Balance Sheet Date
There are no events occurring after the Balance Sheet date.
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Note 8.8: Jointly Controlled Operations

Name of Entity

Principal Activity

Country of
Incorporation

Jointly Controlled Entity
Gippsland Health Alliance

Information Systems

Australia

Ownership Interest
2019
%

2018
%

11.54

12.51

Bairnsdale Regional Health Service's interest in assets employed in the above jointly controlled
operations and assets is detailed below. The amounts are included in the financial statements
under their respective categories:
2019

2018

$'000

$'000

Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables
Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets

889
156
299
1,344

1,045
123
300
1,468

Non Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
Total Non Current Assets
Total Assets

488
488
1,831

266
266
1,734

Current Liabilities
Trade Creditors
Accrued Expenses
Other Current Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities
Net Assets

0
107
12
118
1,713

66
11
77
1,658

Equity
Accumulated surpluses
TOTAL EQUITY

1,713
1,713

1,658
1,658

Bairnsdale Regional Health Service's interest in revenues and expenses resulting from jointly
controlled operations are detailed below:
2019
2018
$'000

$'000

Revenues
Gippsland Health Alliance income
Capital income
Total Revenue

1,360
10
1,370

1,384
738
2,122

Expenses
Information technology and administrative expenses
Depreciation
Total Expenses

1,311
4
1,314

1,355
2
1,357

Share of Jointly Controlled Entity's Net Result After Tax

55

765
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Note 8.8: Jointly Controlled Operations (continued)
Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments
There are no known contingent liabilities or capital commitments held by the jointly controlled operations at
balance date.

Note 8.9: Economic Dependency
Bairnsdale Regional Health Service is dependent on the Department of Health and Human Services for the
majority of its revenue used to operate the entity. At the date of this report, the Board of Directors has no
reason to believe the Department of Health and Human Services will not continue to support Bairnsdale
Regional Health Service.
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Note 8.10: AASBs Issued that are not yet Effective
Certain new Australian accounting standards have been published that are not mandatory for the 30 June 2019 reporting
period. Department of Treasury and Finance assesses the impact of all these new standards and advises Bairnsdale Regional
Health Service of their applicability and early adoption where applicable.
As at 30 June 2019, the following standards and interpretations had been issued by the AASB but were not yet effective. They
become effective for the first financial statements for reporting periods commencing after the stated operative dates as
detailed in the table below. Bairnsdale Regional Health Service has not and does not intend to adopt these standards early.

Topic

Key requirements

AASB 15 Revenue from
Contracts with
Customers

The core principle of AASB 15 requires an 1 Jan 2019
entity to recognise revenue when the
entity satisfies a performance obligation
by transferring a promised good or
service to a customer. Note that
amending standard AASB 2015 8
Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards – Effective Date of AASB 15
has deferred the effective date of AASB
15 to annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019,
instead of 1 January 2017 for Not-forProfit entities.

The changes in revenue recognition
requirements in AASB 15 may result in
changes to the timing and amount of
revenue recorded in the financial
statements. Revenue from grants that
are provided under an enforceable
agreement that have sufficiently
specific obligations, will now be
deferred and recognised as the
performance obligations attached to
the grant are satisfied.
At this stage, our internal assessment has
determined that the impact of the
application of the new standard will not
be material.

AASB 2016-8
Amendments to
Australian Accounting
Standards – Australian
Implementation
Guidance for Not-forProfit Entities

AASB 2016-8 inserts Australian
1 Jan 2019
requirements and authoritative
implementation guidance for not-forprofit-entities into AASB 9 and AASB 15.
This Standard amends AASB 9 and AASB
15 to include requirements to assist notfor-profit entities in applying the
respective standards to particular
transactions and events.

This standard clarifies the application of
AASB 15 and AASB 9 in a not-for-profit
context. The areas within these
standards that are amended for not-forprofit application include:
AASB 9
• Statutory receivables are recognised
and measured similarly to financial
assets.
AASB 15
• The ‘customer’ does not need to be
the recipient of goods and/or services;
• The “contract” could include an
arrangement entered into under the
direction of another party;
• Contracts are enforceable if they are
enforceable by legal or ‘equivalent
means’;
• Contracts do not have to have
commercial substance, only economic
substance; and
• Performance obligations need to be
‘sufficiently specific’ to be able to apply
AASB 15 to these transactions.
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Note 8.10: AASBs Issued that are not yet Effective (continued)
AASB 16 Leases

The key changes introduced by AASB 16 1 Jan 2019
include the recognition of operating
leases (which are currently not
recognised) on balance sheet.

The assessment has indicated that most
operating leases, with the exception of
short term and low value leases will
come on to the balance sheet and will
be recognised as right of use assets with
a corresponding lease liability.
In the operating statement, the
operating lease expense will be
replaced by depreciation expense of
the asset and an interest charge.
There will be no change for lessors as the
classification of operating and finance
leases remains unchanged.
At this stage, our internal assessment has
determined that the application of new
standard will not be material.

AASB 2018-8
Amendments to
Australian Accounting
Standards – Right of use
asset

This standard amends various other
1 Jan 2019
accounting standards to provide an
option for not-for-profit entities to not
apply the fair value initial measurement
requirements to a class or classes of right
of use assets arising under leases with
significantly below-market terms and
conditions principally to enable the
entity to further its objectives. This
Standard also adds additional disclosure
requirements to AASB 16 for not-for-profit
entities that elect to apply this option.

Under AASB 1058, not-for-profit entities
are required to measure right-of-use
assets at fair value at initial recognition
for leases that have significantly belowmarket terms and conditions.
For right-of-use assets arising under
leases with significantly below market
terms and conditions principally to
enable the entity to further its objectives
(peppercorn leases), AASB 2018-8
provides a temporary option for Not-forProfit entities to measure at initial
recognition, a class or classes of right-ofuse assets at cost rather than at fair
value and requires disclosure of the
adoption.
The State has elected to apply the
temporary option in AASB 2018-8 for notfor-profit entities to not apply the fair
value provisions under AASB 1058 for
these right-of-use assets.
In making this election, the State
considered that the methodology of
valuing peppercorn leases was still
being developed.
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Note 8.10: AASBs Issued that are not yet Effective (continued)
AASB 1058 Income of
Not-for-Profit Entities

AASB 1058 will replace the majority of
income recognition in relation to
government grants and other types of
contributions requirements relating to
public sector not-for-profit entities,
previously in AASB 1004 Contributions.
The restructure of administrative
arrangement will remain under AASB
1004 and will be restricted to
government entities and contributions
by owners in a public sector context,
AASB 1058 establishes principles for
transactions that are not within the
scope of AASB 15, where the
consideration to acquire an asset is
significantly less than fair value to
enable not-for-profit entities to further
their objective.

1 Jan 2019

Grant revenue is currently recognised up
front upon receipt of the funds under
AASB 1004 Contributions.
The timing of revenue recognition for
grant agreements that fall under the
scope of AASB 1058 may be deferred.
For example, revenue from capital
grants for the construction of assets will
need to be deferred and recognised
progressively as the asset is being
constructed.
The impact on current revenue
recognition of the changes is the
potential phasing and deferral of
revenue recorded in the operating
statement.
At this stage, our internal assessment has
determined that the impact of the
application of the new standard will not
be material.

AASB 1059 Service
Concession
Arrangements: Grantor

This standard applies to arrangements
that involve an operator providing a
public service on behalf of a public
sector grantor. It involves the use of a
service concession asset and where the
operator manages at least some of the
public service at its own direction. An
arrangement within the scope of this
standard typically involves an operator
constructing the asset used to provide
the public service or upgrading the
assets and operating and maintaining
the assets for a specified period of time.

1 January 2020
(The State is
intending to
early adopt
AASB 1059 for
annual reporting
periods
beginning on or
after 1 January
2019)

For an arrangement to be in scope of
AASB 1059 all of the following
requirements are to be satisfied:
• Operator is providing public services
using a service concession asset;
• Operator manages at ‘least some’ of
public services under its own discretion;
• The State controls / regulates:
– what services are to be provided;
– to whom; and
– at what price
• State controls any significant residual
interest in the asset.
If the arrangement does not satisfy all
the above requirements the recognition
will fall under the requirements of
another applicable accounting
standard.

AASB 2018-5
Amendments to
Australian Accounting
Standards – Deferral of
AASB 1059

This standard defers the mandatory
effective date of AASB 1059 from 1
January 2019 to 1 January 2020.

1 January 2020
(The State is
intending to
early adopt
AASB 1059 for
annual reporting
periods
beginning on or
after 1 January
2019)

This standard defers the mandatory
effective date of AASB 1059 for periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019 to
1 January 2020. As the State has elected
to early adopt AASB 1059, the financial
impact will be reported in the financial
year ending 30 June 2019, rather than
the following year.
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Note 8.10: AASBs Issued that are not yet Effective (continued)
AASB 2018-7
Amendments to
Australian Accounting
Standards – Definition of
Material

This Standard principally amends AASB 1 Jan 2020
101 Presentation of Financial Statements
and AASB 108 Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors. The amendments refine and
clarify the definition of material in AASB
101 and its application by improving the
wording and aligning the definition
across AASB Standards and other
publications. The amendments also
include some supporting requirements in
AASB 101 in the definition to give it more
prominence and clarify the explanation
accompanying the definition of
material.

The standard is not expected to have a
significant impact on the public sector.

In addition to the new standards and amendments above, the AASB has issued a list of other amending standards that are
not effective for the 2018-19 reporting period (as listed below). In general, these amending standards include editorial and
references changes that are expected to have insignificant impacts on public sector reporting.
• AASB 2017-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Transfers of Investment Property, Annual Improvements
2014-16 Cycle and Other Amendments
• AASB 2017-4 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
• AASB 2017-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
• AASB 2017-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures
• AASB 2018-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Annual Improvements 2015 – 2017 Cycle
• AASB 2018-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Plan Amendments, Curtailment or Settlement
• AASB 2018-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements
• AASB 2018-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Definition of a Business
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Disclosure index
The annual report of Bairnsdale Regional Health Service is prepared in accordance with all relevant Victorian
legislation. This index has been prepared to facilitate identification of the Department’s compliance with
statutory disclosure requirements.

Legislation

Requirement

Page Reference

Charter and purpose
FRD 22H

Manner of establishment and the relevant Ministers

2

FRD 22H

Purpose, functions, powers and duties

2

FRD 22H

Nature and range of services provided

4

FRD 22H

Activities, programs and achievements for the reporting period

15

FRD 22H

Significant changes in key initiatives and expectations for the future

15

Management and structure
FRD 22H

Organisational structure

14

FRD 22H

Workforce data / employment and conduct principles

16

FRD 22H

Occupational Health and Safety

16

Financial information
FRD 22H

Summary of the financial results for the year

18

FRD 22H

Significant changes in financial position during the year

19

FRD 22H

Operational and budgetary objectives and performance against objectives

19

FRD 22H

Subsequent events

20

FRD 22H

Details of consultancies under $10,000

20

FRD 22H

Details of consultancies over $10,000

20

FRD 22H

Disclosure of ICT expenditure

21

FRD 22H

Application and operation of Freedom of Information Act 1982

21

FRD 22H

Compliance with building and maintenance provisions of Building Act 1993

22

FRD 22H

Application and operation of Protected Disclosure 2021

22

FRD 22H

Statement on National Competition Policy

22

FRD 22H

Application and operation of Carers Recognition Act 2021

22

FRD 22H

Summary of entity’s environmental performance

22

FRD 22H

Additional information available on request

23

Legislation
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Legislation

Requirement

Page Reference

Other relevant reporting directives
FRD 25D

Local Jobs First Act disclosures

24

SD 5.1.4

Financial Management Compliance attestation

25

SD 5.2.3

Declaration in report of operations

3

Attestations
Attestation on Data Integrity

27

Attestation on managing Conflicts of Interest

27

Attestation on Integrity, fraud and corruption

27

Other reporting requirements


Reporting of outcomes from Statement of Priorities 2018-19

28



Occupational Violence reporting

39



Reporting of compliance Health Purchasing Victoria policy

40



Reporting obligations under the Safe Patient Care Act 2015

22



Reporting of compliance regarding Car Parking Fees (if applicable)

BAIRNSDALE REGIONAL HEALTH SERVICE 2018/2019

N/A

Page 108

